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hiFEMHEER
Five Year Financial Highlights

(B 5 45 B 15 4F - ¥ LI i o€ %1 717~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
H IR EIE R HIR
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
Fig - Results of Operations
wET Turnover 1,377,608 1,154,609 991,055 971,936 1,110,115
E A Gross profit 915,720 775,171 640,557 592,608 671,454
SEWl R Gross margin 66.5% 67.1% 64.6% 61.0% 60.5%
285 iew A Profit from operations 301,731 257,849 171,936 88,724 102,515
K8t A A% Operating margin 21.9% 22.3% 17.3% 9.1% 9.2%
BEWEME Net valuation gains/
k28 g 18) (losses) on investment
5 51 properties 20,000 20,000 20,500 (13,000) 13,400
B B Net gain on disposal of
I EREIE ] investment properties - - - L 45,589
6 T A A Net gain on disposal
TR of associate 321,169 - 7,899 - -
JRE A W 7 2 ) Share of profits less losses
i 1] 8 e 1H of associate 46,982 49,128 29,478 17,072 34,099
Ay dlHE#R B Profit attributable to equity
JRE A1 T ) shareholders of the Company 632,944 282,934 199,684 78,541 172,030
IR Net profit margin 45.9% 24.5% 20.1% 8.1% 15.5%
B A — 2R Earnings per share — basic $3.86 $1.80 $1.30 $0.51 $1.12
B 1 A B S Interim dividend per share $0.30 $0.25 $0.15 $0.10 $0.13
i R 9 I S Final dividend per share $0.80 $0.75 $0.40 $0.28 $0.32
A HIE. Special dividend per share $4.00 - - - $0.30
IR B R Dividend payout 132.1% 55.6% 42.3% 74.5% 67.0%
198 R B Financial Position
REHEBENL  Cash generated from
Z Bl operations 255,480 256,407 227,016 113,415 165,977
B4 I 8R AT Cash and bank deposits
&5 A7 AR AT less short-term bank loans
BRI and overdrafts 1,079,555 391,383 167,591 224,097 237,691
i) & Net current assets 1,591,842 520,011 211,307 313,801 330,883
g Total assets 2,398,737 1,537,227 1,193,836 991,564 1,117,714
M Total liabilities 276,602 284,842 243,289 190,623 253,061
e S i Shareholders’ equity 2,097,274 1,228,470 928,131 781,925 842,834
-4 48 7 M % Return on total assets 26.4% 18.4% 16.7% 7.9% 15.4%
-85 B R R R Return on
] i %R shareholders’ equity 30.2% 23.0% 21.5% 10.0% 20.4%
By & (1) Current ratio (times) 6.8 2.9 1.9 2.8 2.4
EARAMEE  Gearing ratio 0.003 0.029 0.052 0.023 0.054
i 3 U Ty Number of shares
HAH (T outstanding ('000) 164,779 162,211 153,832 153,832 153,832
Mo (E Market capitalisation 4,144,192 2,520,759 1,161,432 446,113 789,158

WERE - 2% T B4 3R B AR AR O i G R YE D BB 298 1T 74 B
M RT > A =% — AR AR AR B e R EOR S L
MR CR i & 5 RD S 4098 M1 7 LA B (E
T RR AL W SR IR EBLIH - | E B FAE S D%
T R -RER-F-—F=ZA=T—HIL
BB BT T L R -

Note:

In order to opt to early adopt the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in 2012 the

Group changed its accounting policy for recognising deferred tax on investment properties
carried at fair values under HKAS 40, Investment properties. Figures for years ended 31
March 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 have been restated.

2011/12 4 #
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Chairman’s Statement

B R

ANENRKYGME 5 A RAFEH G H 2
BREE®RE - Z—-_"F=H=1+—HILF
JBE ) A 4 B SE 5 -

A Y4 R LA R 19.3% £ 13.776 15
HETT o [HIIL » AR HE A 5 4E 3N 17.0% %.3.017
¥ JC o DL Ah > AR 4E [ L3R 4 A0 18 6.005 1%
0 o B VR R AR A BR S B 2 A TR A
B A5 TR U 35 3.2124% W JT o AR 4B [ R 4E TE %
R A0 = 26373kt - B HEH B AL H R
RERELBAMBMET EK EFFRRL
A5F 5 5 4 9 T 45 I B B o R L A B A 15 6.635
Bt B FE - FHHANH A TR -

AAE Y B2 R R T 3 4 AL AR
£ [ 4% 2EHH 19 89.0% o 4F AT AR 1 4B 4 4R W
KA R 20.0% FE 12.257 % # IC ©

@ WHF—_FHH > KM Aquascutum
Limited i 4 21 ik i 5% 2 ] 1 55 B 19 ik
H TR K[ Aquascutum ] it & BR 1Y &
AR ERE . A ZFFILE LA ML
W T Aquascutum J 74 55 9 Hb & (1 50 5k 2= RE
% IR AL B
5E B A BR M — B8 L o

T AM 7O 2% 08 R WA A9 OB > A 4R B 7E o
P T 85 R T O T A EEOR R  #
AT OR B AT T I A R PO RO
AZE b B B o O U A A S A DL
— A ANTE R BRI EAT GMR I B O
i AT I B B i B R P B L
& T 2 ERE 8 A M R AR 8% R o A wE
B A 22 PR 5 S5 - NI AE S A0 R N A
REEBIAER - T FORKEE M HES
FAM 58 AE 5 B AY 8% R AN A X
FAM I 51 13 O AN B it R E R AL
U7 B A~ B R KT A o

(o)  FAM % 4 4 % B 9% B AR B R B IR
55 LT Ashworth ] 76 77 B8 74 3l ~ &
WA & 0 S5 F T 5 A B A A e R
[ AR R FRAM B T T R K
i B 5 BTG B > IR T R & -

©) TMichel Renél & MM B — Ju-& 7 4 i or
MWHRSM SRS REHEEN LMY
HONB > R ER PR AR B T R
ERi R NG e ey IE R S K P
B 43 8 2 78 4h > TMichel René | 7% iR 49 F iR
W DL Ko KR A ZE R B AT ORI IR B
7 BB [ 1Y B BRI o

(@) T[J.Lindebergl 72 i Mt % & &% 5
B = WO OBR R AE R AR R
B il 75 s AR M4 g e

(6)  HF I rAy i 1Y B % BR T B AR A 3R A
TE SR ZE 1A R 5 1A 8 73— 5L PRSP F) 47 2 o
fil A R 2 A FIE R )8k A 588 i
BB RFIN R

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | present to you the results of our Group for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

Our Group’s turnover grew by 19.3% from last year to HK$1,377.6 million.
Hence, profit from operations increased by 17.0% from last year to HK$301.7
million. In addition, our Group recorded an exceptional gain of HK$321.2
million on disposal of all interests in Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited at a
cash consideration of HK$600.5 million. Our Group’s profit for the year
surged to a record high of HK$637.3 million. After having considered funding
for future developments and expansions of our Group, our Board resolved
to pay a special dividend of HK$4 per share. Total special dividend of
HK$663.5 million was paid to shareholders on 8 May 2012.

Garment retail and marketing is our Group’s principal business which
accounted for 89.0% of our Group’s turnover. Total sales of garment for the
year grew by 20.0% from last year to HK$1,225.7 million.

@)

In May 2012, we have acquired from the administrators of AQuascutum
Limited the apparel retail business in the United Kingdom and all
intellectual property rights of Aquascutum worldwide. This marks
another milestone for our Group to complete global brand unification
since we acquired the intellectual property rights of Aquascutum in
Asian territories in September 2009.

We view this as an exciting opportunity as our Group has made
significant strides in enhancing the brand in Asia, investing heavily in
marketing, store expansion, and product development. This acquisition
marks our next phase in consolidating the brand globally under one
owner and will create a better platform for strengthening world-wide
image and future growth. We are planning for global expansion and
continuing the existing business in the United Kingdom and Europe.
In order to enhance the British heritage, we will reinforce the design
and creative team in the United Kingdom. We are also expanding and
diversifying the brand’s product categories such as sportswear, kids
wear and accessories.

Ashworth, a leading American lifestyle and sportswear brand, continues
to develop the distribution network in our licensed markets including
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. In the year under
review, the brand has successfully upgraded the brand image through
shop image renovation and various advertising campaigns.

Michel René is our house brand which has been established since
1976. The brand represents high quality business-wear for professionals
and executives. In addition to our current distribution channel of retail
and wholesale outlets in the Greater China region, Michel Rene had
established solid sales through on-line channel as well as tailoring and
producing uniforms for big corporations.

J.Lindeberg is a golf inspired premium designer label from Sweden.
During the year, our Group negotiated with J.Lindeberg for a new
distribution agreement and are currently distributing in Hong Kong and
Macau markets.

Manufacturing environment in Mainland China continues to be difficult
and our factory in Dongguan had faced another challenging year.
Despite all the adverse factors, it was able to record a profit from
operations with a growth in sales.
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18514F » 1o AR IR %% & #1384 John Emary (4% - 3L 35 %) A 32 Aquascurum [ #%
T PE 1 > g e DL BB A 3 B R SR R T S A 5 K A AR o HCAR At B 3h B8 ) 5
T35 % B89 B K 3 B - 3 % 48 JET B Bl SR o Aquascutum £ AR H R R
LT3 > aqua’ K HL T SCHITIK ] > T Sscucun’ HI R B 82 i) 35 & o Aquascutum 7
JE\ A F JRE B2 e > 3 983 RS WY B R B A9 4 © John Emary 7 5 — U S R B )
5% HE e wt B K o i JE Aquascutum M 4K E BT 3 HE L M A M5 2 — o DA AR
2% B % W 58 A 1 B K A o

Aquascutum i 3% 5 = 5% - Boig Sl o DL BB KA AR RN F K o 1602 4
VLA > Aquascurum — LA fiil B2 5 9 — R4y - b B AR B A A e S 55 1 B
BT[] I IS i 78 IR W e R o A Y RO AR RO A I SRURD B W v
JRE B JE A o

20124E5 H > YGM B % fh L 2 BR W N »

Aquascutum was founded in 1851 by high quality tailor John Emary with the mission to provide
stylish protection from the unpredictable British weather. John Emary invented and patented
the innovative technique of shower-proofing wools and was the first to introduce rain repellent
cloth. The name Aquascutum originates from the two Latin words ‘aqua’ (water) and ‘scutum’
(shield). Aquascutum plays an intrinsic role in the history of the trench coat; from the British
Government’s commission of John Emary to design an outer garment for the officers in the
WW1 trenches, to the invention of the Raglan sleeve to the deconstruction and re-interpretation
of the trench and innovation of modern shower proof fabrics.

Aquascutum continues to dress the powerful, from British Royalty, politicians to international
celebrities. Aquascutum has been part of London city life for over 160 years. Its heritage is rooted
in excellent British tailoring and to this day delivers an understated, British elegance.

In May 2012, YGM became the global owner of Aquascutum.
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R FE A M A A AR 4R
POECE- Sl L R R

%*ﬁﬂ’ws%yﬂia
T A RE W 2L AF B

16.6% £ 1.07 {5 # 7T »

@)

AN B9 % A2

[Guy Laroche] % % B 1) 4= Bk 35 44 &b JéL »
DUIRE 1 R 8 BT G AR o 21—‘%@)5\:23?@
EREA R R B RN
GRS F T NG | N =
15 ity IR R 8 B o Bk SR A Bk S K B AT
BUEh > H 5 2 R A A R K PR SR TS -

A B AR A AR BB — S R =
AR B R R > B R 9 [ Aquascutum ]
SEHE N A R B o AR AR TG R AT B R B A2
REZABEENSERE > DR THET
P AR U %5 o

B il € B A 4 Bk A5 &R > SE

Fedis B ¥ & T o S0 T5 B9 HL S A RIS E o R
“ER-CHE=ZAT S AL KB A A
i A I VAT U T A

JLHE

23 7 NH A RE I ) K Y R A - ARE 5 4.308

& o0 > O WO 5 4,398 i T > 22 5 i TR
“E-CHEANA S NANBER -

N 3

BRL MEREMAERE % — =

=t

M E R E H A R R A 4 Bk KR O BR BT T AR
—HE=A
F b AF SR AT I 0 2 A - (EBRAM I

Wi b B PA) M AU A A% o b RO 1 B

5 [

FEAT R MR Bk o DL R R R Z ) B4R

9 TR I3 1 B A e R o SR - FRAM AR RS BRAF

4

M ) RE GRS T - EEMAREL

BEAFMNEIMER > BRMCERERAFNLE

b
BE %7

A K A0 I e TR AR S A AR Y MO

MUt M AEIER N R DR AE

J&

f14 il WD E o

[Aquascutum] & J# 1 1l # A A Aquascutum
Limited B & 1% > AEFH R —F — —F 1A I

H 4]

Ik M5 T Aquascutum | 7E 4 Bk H At i

1 P R i 2 A [ 1) 0 2 5 S © PRI

BN S
&AM

% B § #E A [ Aquascutum ) i 2 Bk 4 A -
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Licensing of trademarks income accounted for 7.8% of our Group’s turnover.
Total income of licensing of trademarks from outsiders increased by 16.6%
from last year to HK$107.0 million.

(@ Guy Laroche is a French brand known worldwide for its high fashion
and impeccable quality. Our Group acquired the brand in 2004 and
has since through its designing team in Paris successfully established
the brand’s presence in all high end fashion scenes around the world.
The management will continue to look for expansion in its licensing
business despite the current economic unrest worldwide.

During the year under review, our Group had signed a license agreement
with an independent third party to develop a new collection of
Aquascutum luxury body wear. Our Group will look forward to exploring
cooperation opportunities with more global licensees in order to
increase the licensing of trademarks income.

Our security printing business remained profitable with increases in sales
and profit. Rental income from outsiders had been stable. On 12 March
2012, a subsidiary of our Group entered into a provisional agreement with
an independent third party for a sale of shop premises at Park Lane Shopper’s
Boulevard, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$439,800,000. A deposit of HK$43,980,000 had been received. The
transaction will be completed on 28 June 2012.

Our Group is currently operating in an increasingly challenging global
economic environment. Although we had satisfactory results for the year
ended 31 March 2012, we anticipate the coming year to be more difficult
with the slowing down of Mainland China’s economy coupled with the
continuing financial problems in Europe and a weak recovery in the United
States. However we always firmly believe in the long term growth and
potential of the Mainland China market. The directors are confident that with
the strength and resources of our Company, we are well in position to benefit
from opportunities arise from an adverse economy and from recovery of the
economy itself. To this end, we are constantly seeking growth both internally
and in expanding into new brands and products.

On 9 May 2012, our Group has acquired Aquascutum’s remaining worldwide
intellectual property rights and part of its ongoing retail business in the United
Kingdom from the administrators after the former owner, Aquascutum
Limited, went into insolvency. As a result, our Group now owns the entire
Aquascutum worldwide. We are fully aware of the difficulty in operating retail
business in the United Kingdom under current economic environment. We
will concentrate in consolidating and resolving all existing problems and
hope to bring the United Kingdom operations into healthy condition within
areasonable period of time. However, we believe owning a brand worldwide
such as Aquascutum which has a heritage of over 160 years will bring great
potential and value to our Group in the long run.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation
to the management and all our staff for their hard work and contributions
during this year. We also owe our success to our long term suppliers,
customers as well as shareholders.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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5% B e 8 % B AR TR i B Ashworceh [E 6 801 - &1 37 A 1987 4
BT $2 B R i~ EL 3l R - T 8 IR PR AR BY 55 L AR o AR A ER
TE 4R 1 8 R IR 5 ol B > Ashworch— B DA A 37 2 115 B2 B 78 % 5t it
AR ER Y B AR o Ashworch Y B BT S i VR 32 38 N -
EERY LM AR EAHRIRT R ER REAES R
B 1 1K 35 B PGA XK 28 28 56 BE (¥ Fred Couples (3 75 18 - 3Kk % % #7)
B F At BR B W Sean O Hair (5 &\ - B35 ) 52 Ryan Palmer (3€ A& -
78 R > g5 A i L 28 S 4 R T R BR 9 F Justin Rose (B {7 -
B I0T) B R 2R TE SR AE > 5 B Ashworch 20 B £ it R bk TR 5 o

YGM A 1998 4 1F AR B Ashworth fi B AR B - A 75 % ~ WP~ [
W H K 6 B S o

Established in 1987, the American golfand lifestyle brand showcases popular men’s
and women’s apparel. As the pioneer in Golf apparel design, Ashworth’s high standard
of products is well recognized among golf-players. Ashworth initiated the sponsorship
to many potential golfers and team up with international golfers to achieve remarkable
results. Besides sponsorship to Fred Couples, the 15 times PGA winner, the brand
sponsors up and coming golfers such as Sean O’hair and Ryan Palmer. Recently,
Ashworth has invited the famous professional golfer, Justin Rose as the new brand

ambassador, will make the switch to Ashworth in World Tournament.

YGM has been the exclusive licensee of apparel and accessories of Ashworth since

1998. The retail network covers Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5 &8 A Results of the Group’s Operations
2E [ 3 Group’s Operations
2012 2011 +/(-)
WL T # It T 0 8 )
HK$’000 HK$'000 change
(F )
(restated)
e Turnover 1,377,608 1,154,609 19.3%
EH Gross profit 915,720 775,171 18.1%
E R Gross profit margin 66.5% 67.1% -0.6pp
A2 i ) Profit from operations 301,731 257,849 17.0%
K e ) 28 Operating margin 21.9% 22.3% -0.4pp
i< g7/E XE N R Net valuation gains on investment
properties 20,000 20,000 -
JBE A B 5 23 W) 3 A BES I Share of profits less losses of associate 46,982 49,128 -4.4%
T A N ) i R T R Net gain on disposal of associate 321,169 - -
A% 2 ) HE £ IR R A Profit attributable to equity
Tt ] shareholders of the Company 632,944 282,934 123.7%
#li R R Net profit margin 45.9% 24.5% +21.4pp
KEtFIE - BLIE T KX EBITDA
i 54 2 1 2 42 A (EBITDA) 717,634 349,407 105.4%
EBITDA F i EBITDA margin 52.1% 30.3% +21.8pp
B B 1 ) — A Earnings per share - basic $3.86 $1.80 114.4%
B i eb % S Interim dividend per share $0.30 $0.25 20.0%
T AR % S Final dividend per share $0.80 $0.75 6.7%
T B4 Al % S Special dividend per share $4.00 - -
KB % Dividend payout 132.1% 55.6% +76.5pp

AEEBEHHEE - _F=H=+—HI
AF B Il £ 637,317,000 #5 0 (& — —4F (H
#t) 1 287,637,000% Jt) o I B i ik DL £ AC
& 600,485,000 5 TG H B A £ [ 1A T 4 4 ]
EHAEB R A BR AT (TSR] B
T A 28 5 B A RS /L TiE) 6 BT A NE 5
Jir 7 A — JE 321,169,000 #E 7T 1Y 45 ik I 35 (B
S 15 1 55 B 530,024,000 #E T M B #H
19,448,000k 7C) ©

A S5 H 1 5 | TH19.3% % 1,377,608,000
JC (. — — 4 1 1,154,609,000 # JC) - A 4 [
ZEBEHF R KA EHBR LZFEWN
1,021,638,000% 7T » #5120.0% % 1,225,724,000
ot e 2k | AN KT 2 4 Rkt AR b
F+16.6% % 106,982,000 i JC ( = &F — — 4 :
91,746,000 J0) » It > B F 4% FTH18.1%
% 915,720,000 4% 7T (=% — —4E : 775,171,000
W) o B A R LA 1 67.1% B R T 2k
% 66.5% °

The Group recorded a profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
HK$637,317,000 (2011 (restated): HK$287,537,000). Major attribute was
an exceptional gain of HK$321,169,000 (net of indemnity liabilities of
HK$30,024,000 and professional fees of HK$9,448,000) on disposal of all
interests in an associate, Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited (‘HTGH”) whose
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, at a cash
consideration of HK$600,485,000.

Turnover of the Group grew by 19.3% to HK$1,377,608,000 (2011:
HK$1,154,609,000). Total sales of garments, which is the Group’s principal
business, surpassed HK$1,021,638,000 for the previous year by 20.0% to
HK$1,225,724,000. Total income of licensing of trademarks from external
customers increased by 16.6% to HK$106,982,000 (2011: HK$91,746,000).
Hence, total gross profit increased by 18.1% to HK$915,720,000 (2011:
HK$775,171,000). Overall gross profit margin dropped slightly to 66.5%
from 67.1% of the previous year.



Fi B B ). Lindeberg % 1997 48 4k H & 8 & 51 DL AR - B2 Ak &

I 2 W 40 Bl O B AR A6 o A Ok R W A B &Y A0

7 2 1 3R 30 M I 5K > % vl B 3 SO B A MBE - HF AR A AR - J.LINDEBERG
KIS~ A WA BT - FW - W KB

TR © J.Lindeberg 4 th: - 4% b ey A% IR %€ B Y 5 K& H & A\ I8

Y S VN | TP ACE STE A P S e

I 0 N B 0 G B o

YGM 8] . Lindeberg AB % 5T 43 8 15 - M 5K 7 4 W S WL 1) 83
£ J.Lindeberg 1 £ il ©

Since its first collection in 1997, J.Lindeberg has successfully combined
fashion and sportswear. J.Lindeberg’s main collection and its progressive
golf and ski collections are sold in more than 30 countries worldwide.
The stores are located in Stockholm, Copenhagen, Kitzbiihel, New York,
Los Angeles, Miami, Hong Kong, Seoul, Osaka and Tokyo. J.Lindeberg

apparel is also carried by leading independent boutiques, upscale
departments stores, and some of the world’s most exclusive golf and ski

shops. The brand is headquartered in Stockholm, Sweden.

YGM has signed the distribution agreement with J.Lindeberg AB for the
exclusive rights to market and sell products of J.Lindeberg in Hong Kong
and Macau.
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M &8 E L E)

5 ()
& % M i £ 4 19 257,849,000 % ot 0 b Tt
17.0% % 301,731,000 T # K= & H 5
647129000‘?%7?; TR 534259000«%
> MR 21.1% 1Y 3 I o A 4E [ FH 4 K H
1113 15 FA B S 48 % 1 R 12.1% £ 214,075,000 #
J6 (=% — — 4E : 191,046,000 #: 7C) 1.52&%
[ 2 ER15.5% (F — —4F 1 16.5%) - H
TR AR A% (B 55 FH &) iﬂﬁbn13.5%§
232,297,000 # 76 (. & — —4F : 204,629,000 #
IG) o A A AL Y EH16.9% (R — —4F
17.7%) = A 45 [ 1 B A K HE B 2 ) AL A
R 34.7% % 37,192,000 # T ( —~ & — — 4 :
27,612,000 76) » fd A< 2L I (0 45 £ 2.7% (=
T ——4F 1 2.4%)
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Results of the Group’s Operations (continued)

Group’s Operations (continued)

Profit from operations surged by 17.0% from HK$257,849,000 for the
previous year to HK$301,731,000. Total operating expenses amounted to
HK$647,129,000 (2011: HK$534,259,000), representing an increase of
21.1%. Total rental and other occupancy expenses of the Group grew by
12.1% to HK$214,075,000 (2011: HK$191,046,000) which accounted for
15.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the turnover of the Group. Total staff costs, including
directors’ remuneration, increased by 13.5% to HK$232,297,000 (2011:
HK$204,629,000) and accounted for 16.9% (2011: 17.7%) of the turnover
of the Group. Total advertising and promotion expenses of the Group grew
by 34.7% to HK$37,192,000 (2011: HK$27,612,000) which accounted for
2.7% (2011: 2.4%) of the turnover of the Group.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$632,944,000
(2011 (restated): HK$282,934,000) which included a share of profit of HTGH
before disposal amounting to HK$46,982,000 (2011: HK$49,128,000).

For the period under review, EBITDA of the Group rose by 105.4% to
HK$717,634,000 (2011 (restated): HK$349,407,000). EBITDA margin
increased from 30.3% of the previous year to 52.1%. These increases were
mainly due to an exception gain on disposal of HTGH.

Basic earnings per share increased to HK$3.86 (2011 (restated): HK$1.80).

Cash Flow from Operations

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group generated HK$255,480,000
of cash from operations which decreased slightly from HK$256,407,000 of
the previous year same period. Inventories as at 31 March 2012 increased
by HK$42,823,000 from the previous year to HK$193,311,000.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had cash and bank deposits net of
overdrafts and short-term bank loans of HK$1,079,555,000 (31 March 2011:
HK$391,383,000), an increase of HK$688,172,000 which included the cash
consideration for disposal of HTGH of HK$600,485,000 and after payments
of dividends of HK$172,624,000 during the year. At 31 March 2012, the
Group had trading securities with a fair value of HK$1,591,000 (31 March
2011: HK$1,613,000).

After due consideration of cash on hand, future investment requirements of
the Group and the economic outlook, the Board of Directors resolved to
pay a special dividend of HK$4 per share. Total special dividend of
HK$663,455,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company on 8 May
2012.

On 9 May 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of apparel retail
business in the United Kingdom and all intellectual property rights of
Aquascutum at a cash consideration of GBP15,000,000 (approximately
HK$188,171,000).
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Established in 1976 and being the house brand of YGM,
MICHEL RENE represents high quality yet affordable men’s
and women’s fashion. French style and metropolitan elegance are
the distinguishing features of every MICHEL RENE suits and
casual wears. The brand puts emphasis on sophisticated
craftsmanship, contemporary styling and fine quality fabrics on
apparel for professionals and executives in town. MICHEL
RENEs classic style takes today’s men & women from day to
night, and from work to weekend.
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Results of the Group’s Operations (continued)

Cash Flow from Operations (continued)

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$24,428,000 in additions
and replacement of fixed assets, compared to approximately HK$22,540,000
for the previous year.

Group’s Financial Position

The Group financed its operations by internally generated cashflows and
banking facilities provided by its bankers. The Group continues to maintain
a prudent approach in managing its financial requirements.

On 12 March 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a provisional
agreement with an independent third party for the sale of shop premises at
Park Lane Shopper’s Boulevard, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$439,800,000. A deposit of HK$43,980,000 had been
received. The transaction will be completed on 28 June 2012. In accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies, the shop premises with a valuation of
HK$420,000,000 as at 31 March 2012 were reclassified as assets held for
sale under current assets.

The Group’s net assets as at 31 March 2012 were HK$2,122,135,000 (31
March 2011 (restated): HK$1,252,385,000). The Group’s gearing ratio at
the year end was 0.003 (31 March 2011 (restated): 0.029) which was
calculated based on total borrowings of HK$5,698,000 (31 March 2011:
HK$35,536,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$2,097,274,000 (31 March
2011 (restated): HK$1,228,470,000). The Group’s borrowings are mainly
on a floating rate basis.

The Group also maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange
exposure management. The Group’s income and expenditure streams are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, New Taiwan Dollars, Japanese
Yen, Pounds Sterling, Euros, Renminbi and Macau Pataca. To manage
currency risks, non Hong Kong Dollar assets are financed primarily by
matching local currency debts as far as possible.

As at 31 March 2012, the Company issued guarantees to banks to secure
banking facilities provided to the subsidiaries amounting to HK$80,455,000
(31 March 2011: HK$179,080,000). The maximum liability of the Company
at the balance sheet date under the guarantees issued is the amount of
banking facilities drawn down by the relevant subsidiaries amounting to
HK$7,398,000 (31 March 2011: HK$52,981,000).
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Guy Laroche, a renowned French label that has long been recognized by its
signature elegant style. Established in 1956 by Guy Laroche himself, the brand
launched its first ready-to-wear collection in 1961. The brand offers the world
products that range from fashion, to perfume, watches, leather goods, and home
fashion. Guy Laroche is well-known for its form-fitting cuttings, accentuating
female bodyline appeal, and thus it has been popular among famous actresses and
celebrities. Guy Laroche designs are for sophisticated, contemporary and elegant
ladies with an appreciation for French style. Hilary Swank wore a Guy Laroche

gown to the Oscar Ceremony when she won her Oscar for best actress.

YGM acquired Guy Laroche in 2004.
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e TN | Operations Review
B 4 8 £ Sales of Garments

2012 2011 +/(-)
LT L i v 5 W)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 change
A B 5 A 4 Revenue from sales of garments 1,225,724 1,021,638 20.0%
53 #B thi Segment profit 263,775 219,443 20.2%
a3 R 22 % A % Segment profit margin 21.5% 21.5% -
S8 A7 B A (H) (B EE)  Inventory turnover on sales (days) (Note) 58 54 7.4%

Bt Gt : AFARSFA I B bR DL 2 A R T LI 365 H

ARG AL FEER (EEAE L b
[ 458 T B e b B R AC) o B4R N s AR
45 [ B 3 84 . Lindeberg AB % 8 58T 1 8 % 2 8

Tk > BN A s SO PTAEAT 20 8

YA B 45 S8 71 20.0% % 1,225,724,000 # 7T
(— & ——4F :1,021,638,000 4 7T) o H Ik > 4
T v A A8 AE 25 4F [\ 9 2 219,443,000 T b
T+20.2% % 263,775,000 # IC © [ —F — T 4F
A=t —HZAESN S E S EHE

W AR Y254 H EFFES8H -

Note: Inventory held at the year end divided by full year turnover times 365 days

Sales of garments is the Group’s principal business which is mainly retailing
and wholesaling of branded garments in the Greater China region. During
the year under review, the Group negotiated with J.Lindeberg AB of Sweden
for a new exclusive distribution agreement and are currently distributing in
Hong Kong and Macau.

Total garment sales surged by 20.0% to HK$1,225,724,000 (2011:
HK$1,021,638,000). Hence, total segment profit increased by 20.2% from
HK$219,443,000 for the previous year same period to HK$263,775,000.
Inventory turnover on sales increased from 54 days for the previous year to
58 days as a result of an increase in inventories held at 31 March 2012.

BIE=H =4 —Hekbm s iz e %Y

Number of POSs by geographical locations as at 31 March

9 5 B R T
vp B A South Korea

Mainland 3 W ¥ (¢ | & Southeast A5

China Hong Kong Macau Taiwan Europe Asia Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Aquascutum 130 125 15 15 3 3 25 23 - - 2 2 | 175 168
Ashworth 47 51 11 12 3] 4 6 5 - - 6 12 73 84
J.Lindeberg 6 7 7 6 1 1 2 - - - - 16 14
Michel René 29 29 15 14 2 2 5 - - 4 3 55 53
Guy Laroche - - - - - - - - 1 1 - - 1 1
MEE Total 212 212 48 47 9 10 38 33 1 1 12 17 | 820 320
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As at the end of March 2012, the Group has a distribution network of 320
(2011: 320) point of sales (“POSs”) in our operating market.

Licensing of Trademarks

In September 2009, the Group acquired the intellectual property rights of
Aquascutum in Asian territories. On 9 May 2012, the Group completed the
acquisition of remaining intellectual property rights of Aquascutum. The
Group is currently the owner of the global intellectual property rights of
Aquascutum.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group owns the global intellectual
property rights of Guy Laroche and the intellectual property rights of
Aquascutum in Asian territories. Total income of licensing of Guy Laroche
and Aquascutum trademarks from external customers increased by 16.6%
to HK$106,982,000 (2011: HK$91,746,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operations Review (continued)

Other Business

With our continuous efforts on controlling costs, our manufacturing plant in
Dongguan reported a profit for the year with an increase in turnover in spite
of adverse worldwide economic environment. Our security printing business
reported a segment profit of HK$10,406,000 (2011: HK$9,682,000). Rental
income from industrial building is steadly.

Outlook

For the year under review, the Group recorded increases in both turnover
and profit from operations as compared with that of the previous year in
spite of a challenging economic environment. Notwithstanding of the slowing
economic growth of Mainland China coupled with the continuing financial
problems in Europe and a weak recovery in the United States, the Group is
confident of a healthy performance in coming year with its strength and its
strong cash position.

The Group completed the acquisition of apparel retail business in the United
Kingdom and all intellectual property rights of Aquascutum in May 2012.
We are working to solve problems of the retail operations in the United
Kingdom and hope to turn it into healthy condition within a reasonable period
of time.

Share Option Scheme

On 28 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22 September 2014.
Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to eligible participants including directors and employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of
15,469,879 new shares.

During the year, no option was granted to any director or employee of the
Group. 2,568,000 options were exercised during the year and total
subscriptions of HK$31,026,000 were received from option grantees. Shares
of the Company were allotted and issued accordingly.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had approximately 1,800 employees (31
March 2011: 1,900). The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
including medical subsidies and retirement scheme contributions to its
employees in compensation for their contribution. In addition, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to the eligible employees
based on the Group’s and individuals’ performances.

Dividends

After due consideration of cash on hand, future investment requirements
and the economic outlook, the Board resolved to pay a special dividend of
HK$4 (2011: nil) per ordinary share. The special dividend totaling
HK$663,455,000 was paid to shareholders on 8 May 2012.

The Board had recommend the payment of a final dividend of 80 HK cents
(2011: 75 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2012
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 14 September
2012. The final dividend totaling HK$132,691,000 (2011: HK$123,303,000),
if approved by the shareholders, is expected to be paid on or around 4
October 2012 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company as at the close of business on 19 September
2012.

2011/12 4 #
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to uphold
a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes that the
principles of transparency, accountability and independence are essential
for protecting the interests of the Company and maximising shareholder
value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices comply with all the code
provisions and to certain extent of the recommended best practices set out
in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except that
the non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of
the Company’s articles of association.

Board of Directors

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim results,
audited financial statements, notifiable transactions, appointment and
re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and disposals, material
contracts, risk management, major financings and borrowings, accounting
and dividends policies. The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the
Company to the management of the Group and also instructs the
management to implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Board comprises seven executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The independent non-executive directors bring a
diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to provide effective guidance
and an outside perspective to all major decisions of the Group. Details of
backgrounds and qualifications of the directors are set out in the section of
“Directors and Senior Executives Profile”.

The Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee had held 5, 2
and 1 meetings respectively in the year under review.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The attendance at the Board and respective Board Committees meetings
held in the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:

#BEZHA MEZAG

HPG Audit Remuneration
WO Board Meeting Board Committee  Committee
17 FF Executive Directors
R Fii Bk Chan Sui Kau 4/5 N/A N/A
Bk 2 Chan Wing Fui, Peter 5/5 N/A 1/1
ot ik %% Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 5/5 N/A 1/1
JE BRI Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 5/5 N/A N/A
K & Fu Sing Yam, William 5/5 N/A N/A
B Kk L Chan Wing Kee 5/5 N/A N/A
] Chan Wing To 5/5 N/A N/A
B or B AT Independent Non-executive Directors
T B2 Leung Hok Lim 5/5 2/2 1/1
51 Lin Keping 5/5 2/2 11
it #H R Sze Cho Cheung, Michael 5/5 2/2 1/1
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Pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-
executive directors has confirmed with the Company in writing his
independence from the Company in accordance with the relevant guidelines.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive directors of the
Company are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate strategies
and overall business development planning. The Chief Executive Officer’s
duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities. The division of
responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee with mandate to oversee
particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. Each of these three Board
committees is set up with written terms of reference. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the
expenses of the Company.

2011/12 4 #

16



EXREABS

Corporate Governance Report

PR RTHEE)

MeEZHe

MeEzagh _F— 4F =0+t HiE
HH -MEZ B gOEMABAAITEH TG
R 7k 45 5o A R Bk £E 50 AR > DL = &4 8 o 3k
AT HE D BD R AR R SR Mo T e A K
MHEREA AR AMEZ BT ER
MEZE TR B MmN RE16H -

M % B & B R AR T E B e BOR R P A
FRELEY ULREEERNMeAS &
T % R AT AE B W SO B R H
EERMWBERERESERR - ZBGF®
% 58 T B2 13 P 2 A5 A BN A S M R B
mEROWEE URZEMEA ST K%
W5l =S RS AL

E I <5 I SRR S R M SR A 7 IR

RHEZHE

ANFRHR F—"HFE=ZH "+ L HEIES
ZEG(RAZET]) - BAZTEGTEIEW
ZAATED > Al B R K 28 oA M ROk B
DL Ko = 4 o7 IF AT A > B B e A
MRE e A A e BRI AT S
RAHEZEBGER -

REZATAHMAERT LM AHK
A MERfHaEERTIEERN AL
AP A% S E AT R M S e DA Rt
ZAL S E B ZAL U L L H R I%&ﬁﬂ
A8 MR AT S B 1) S R R

FERNRALZEGUARITGE -

HEBRZHG

AAFRCOHRVIERZAEG WHAFFHES
N S R R D e VAR S s o
W R BAT R - KRB e gk
Z R ER R G A 16 H -

FEEZAEGEHEATREE AL A B HREN
56 B~ I TR A A I A R A AT R B
TAE At A 2w A S B R RE R H AT
ity 5 BB S A B BB BB R o K E
JI AR 2% R A Bt B S B HE i B AE D7 TG A R
BT E R St w25 > U H T2
Y 5 W R S AT B TR R AEAL -

1 7 2011/12 Annual Report

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was restructured on 27 March 2012. The
Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui,
Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and Mr. Sze Cho
Cheung, Michael. Mr. Sze was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The members’ attendance to the Remuneration
Committee meeting is listed out on page 16.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the directors. It would
also take into account whether the emoluments offered are appropriate
given the duties and performance of the respective individuals concerned
and whether such emoluments are competitive and sufficiently attractive to
retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 27 March 2012. The Nomination Committee comprises two
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing
Sun, Samuel, and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. Mr. Leung
was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, and assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief executives.

During the year, no meeting was held by the Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung Hok Lim. The members’
attendance to the Audit Committee meeting is listed out on page 16.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the presentation
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the reports and
findings prepared by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held meetings to review the financial results, connected
transactions and internal control system for the year ended 31 March 2012.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different from that
of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation presented by the
Audit Committee.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities in Respect
of the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’'s Report” on pages 31 and 32.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to the statutory audit of the Group
amounted to HK$4,005,000 (2011: HK$3,651,000) of which a sum of
HK$2,837,000 (2011: HK$2,747,000) was paid or payable to the Group’s
principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditors, KPMG
and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory audit and non-audit
were HK$2,837,000 (2011: HK$2,747,000) and HK$386,000 (2011:
HK$402,000) respectively.

Directors Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding director’s
securities transactions on terms no less than required standard set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All
Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and
its Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under review.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate and
sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee and an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal audit services
(“Internal Auditors”), conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and risk management functions. The process
used in reviewing the effectiveness of these internal control systems includes
discussion with management on risk areas identified by management. The
purpose of the Company’s internal control is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems so that the
Company’s objectives can be achieved.

Internal Audit Function

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year, the
Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas of concern
identified by management and the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors
performed a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 so as to furnish some degree
of comfort to the Audit Committee and the Board on the reliability and
integrity of the system and control process. The results of the internal control
review were submitted to the Audit Committee for consideration. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the results of the internal control review and is
satisfied that the existing system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 114 to 115.

Segment Information

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate (collectively
the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out on pages
33to 115.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 30 HK cents (2011: 25 HK cents) per share and a
special dividend of HK$4 (2011: nil) were paid on 23 December 2011 and
8 May 2012 respectively.

The directors recommend to shareholders the payment of a final dividend
of 80 HK cents (2011: 75 HK cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2012 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 20 September 2012.

Share Capital

Details of the Company'’s share capital are set out in note 27(c) to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before dividends,
of HK$632,944,000 (2011 (restated): HK$282,934,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on page 38.

Five Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
fiscal years is set out on page 2.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 12
to the financial statements.

Land and buildings held for own use which were transferred to investment
properties and assets held for sale are set out in note 12(g) to the financial
statements.
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Properties

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

On 12 March 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a provisional
agreement with an independent third party for sale of shop premises at Park
Lane Shopper’s Boulevard, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a
consideration of HK$439,800,000 which will be completed on 28 June
2012.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2012 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$270,000 (2011: HK$195,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s sales to its five largest customers and purchases
from its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover and purchases respectively.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
Fu Sing Yam, William
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim
Lin Keping
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael

In accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Messrs Fu Sing Yam,
William, Chan Wing To and Lin Keping will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contract

The independent non-executive directors were appointed by the board of
directors and their remuneration is determined by the board of directors,
see section headed ‘Compliance with the Code of Best Practice’.

None of the directors who has offered himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any other member of the Group which
is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held office at 31
March 2012 had the following interests in the issued shares of the Company,
its subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in
the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

(I) Interests in issued shares

49: JBE i 4 0.50 U o 1 3% %8 Bt % H
Number of Ordinary Shares of HK$0.50 each

6 A BE 2% 0 I HE 2% 2 vi) HE 2% JE fib 4 2
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests® interests interests interests

E# M  Beneficial interests
R 5 2k Chan Sui Kau 3,034,272 214,368 3,840,820 (i)
Bk 2 Chan Wing Fui, Peter 1,024,068 11,624,420 - (ii) & (ii)
B 7k 2% Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 7,476,072 250,000 7,541,144 (ii) & (iii)
JABRF;  Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 6,617,544 16,000 - (ii) & (i)
R & Fu Sing Yam, Wiliam 1,825,462 - - (i)
B i AL Chan Wing Kee 9,346,776 819,404 - (i), (i) & (iv)
B 7 IR Chan Wing To 8,998,736 - - (i), (iii) & (iv)
o Leung Hok Lim 100,000 - - -
v Lin Keping 25,000 - - -

() #ZEWGUSHAEMBEAAZES

ZEEER -

(i) 34,932,700 & 74 2~ w] & i J3 B Chan
Family Investment Corporation Limited
(P R B 2R S 2~ BR K ZE S5k - BROK
BLSE A ~ BROK 54 - BROKIE B4 -
AR BB S A - R BR IR & b K A
BREC 2R N B ) S I e 2 = B
Fif e

(i) 2,920,388 B A 2\ F] i £ T3 B Hearty
Development Limited £ © 3% 72 & B
R 7k 4 56 2E > BR K B A - BR K £
Se A~ BROKIE Se A BRI &+
B H A BRIR S i i B W B -

(i)  The shares are registered under the names of the directors who
are the beneficial owners.

(i) 34,982,700 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Limited (which is owned by Messrs Chan
Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, William, Madam Chan
Suk Ling, Shirley and other members of the Chan family) and its
subsidiaries.

@iy 2,920,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty
Development Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and
Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other members
of the Chan family.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

(I) Interests in issued shares (continued)

(iv) 1,597,000 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Kee and Chan Wing To and other members of the Chan
family.

(II) Interests in underlying shares

The directors of the Company have been granted options under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2012, none of the directors or
their associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO;
or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code. Furthermore, save as disclosed above, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2012 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The purpose of the scheme is to provide an opportunity for
employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in the Company
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. The share option scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years ending on 22 September 2014, after which no further options will be
granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The options vest 30 days from the date of grant and are then exercisable
within a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option scheme
as at 31 March 2012 was 15,469,879 shares (including options for 1,120,000
shares that have been granted but have not yet lapsed or been exercised)
which represented 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2004. In respect of the maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme, the number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

At 31 March 2012, the directors and employees of the Company had the
following interests in the options to subscribe for shares in the Company
(market value per share at 31 March 2012 was HK$25.15) granted for a
nominal charge on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.50
each of the Company.

4R W £33
v A AT B 9 TTEER kAT Y i e Ji Bt 52 fi b
Ji e i e Yo i Wy R TEAR O WRER
YH #H YH BYRH MR g ERAE ERH
No. of Market
options No. of No. of value per Market
outstanding options options Period share at value per
at the exercised outstanding during which Exercise date of share on
beginning during at the Date  options are price grant of exercise
of the year the year year end granted  exercisable per share options of options
(#2) (#0)* (®7)
(HKS) (HKS$)* (HKS)
H
Directors
IR B B 500,000 500,000 - 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 21.40
Chan Sui Kau 15/02/2015
B Ak £ 550,000 550,000 - 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 20.40
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 15/02/2015
JA B 300,000 300,000 - 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 18.00-21.45
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 15/02/2015
K & 1,200,000 950,000 250,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 16.98-25.15
Fu Sing Yam, Wiliam 15/02/2015
B AR 500,000 - 500,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 -
Chan Wing To 156/02/2015
TR 100,000 100,000 - 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 23.55
Leung Hok Lim 15/02/2015
3,150,000 2,400,000 750,000
1 B 538,000 168,000 370,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 to 12.10 12.00 18.50-24.80
Employees 15/02/2015
At
Total 3,688,000 2,568,000 1,120,000

RTEFMIEREIUS S EEHEA AN E
EIVEE -V

Ty AR T A B B P A T M BCHE 10T R A o B T
Bl -

AT [ P 5% W T HEE ) B % A T TR Y

TN HE - 359 (L % R R) - 20 ) SRR B B 3R MR R
261 (i) TH bz 55 258 -

The options granted to the directors are registered under the names of the
directors who are also the beneficial owners.

being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were granted.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(q)(ii) and note 25
to the financial statements respectively.

2011/12 4 #

24



EREEHS

Directors’ Report

JiE B BE w1 B ()

B LA | Bt 3 A o A 2% w5 HAT AT Y JE 4
P90 A A AT AT By ] 2 SLAE {7 22 B > B
Ry T 3 ] DL O W AR O R EUAE T At
5 ] A J A B M T A i o

% B W A

S E— RS A St AL AR
i85 e 91 9 B3 W L5 77 B 1 %6 0T 0 T 4T
B L ST AL A7 B T 2 B 4 S 0 A 28 ) 9
85 90 78 5 A8 AR 9 % 6 01 4 336 1 L5
A7 10 5 £ 47 3 A 3 -

BrASCRT e & 4> A —F — ZHFE=H
=t —H > HEFLAMBAAEMA L B #
By, [H] 42 8 AR 45 78 I 0% 19 5 XV R 5F 2 % 340
0 SCRR R T 28 1) A 7 ) I g 58 BT B 8 1) B
A B B O3 rb Y HE 4 SR > O MR B A AT
1E— Y16 OL N R A A "l i BEAROR & BB
RER (Y B 84T A B B % 55 A 19 A fo] i
e HE Fb o T ] B AT H T (E10% B DL |
1 HE 2 o

JiE - B o el B

WE-F—-"H=H=+—HLEHEER K
O ) B AT A B 2w A R R U
(] AR 2% FAE AT b T R O

R

W48 b i H RIS T TOAEE T B B RS R
it 7 S R 2 B EE 2B 31(b) T A - M o7 JE L
TERRL  ZERExL Y

()  AHE—M KB R ER MR HEAT

() 2 1E F v AR K 0T 48 2 [ 1E # v 60 3K
W 2 25 A e A AT riEW:EZscEJH%
FITAR I 2 e 3K) Bl A St 4 m] 36 BL e 2 iR K
A fﬁz&/\izéﬁiﬂxﬁiﬁﬁ 5N
2 AR HOEAT

(i) AR % A5 5 By M ek R K RT S 5 K

(v) RIFLEE 2 EEEOR (AF) #1T -

FHEHCIRE LR AR B AR
GE-3 CIEER

B DA B Bt 3 Ah > R ) A5 R AR R
) BCH AT o] & 2> W) T T AL T AR A 3 A
B H B R AT ] e T AR R A A
[ERCIE PN E

2 5 2011/12 Annual Report

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 March 2012, the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of the directors, no other interests required to
be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been
notified to the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the directors are not aware of any person who
was, directly or indirectly, interested or had a short position in the shares or
underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of the Company or any options in respect of such capital
as at 31 March 2012.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2012.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors, these transactions were entered into
by the Group:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i)  conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression will
be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be
made by similar entities) or, where there is no available comparison,
on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the independent
shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) inaccordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable.

The directors have received a letter from the auditors of the Company as
required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Retirement Benefit Schemes

Particular of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
24 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except that the non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to rotation and re-election in annual general meetings
pursuant to Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of association.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and reports to the board of directors. The audit committee meets with the
Group’s senior management and external auditors regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control systems and the annual report of the
Group.

Sufficiency Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board
Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP, aged 87, is the founder of our Group. Dr.
Chan established Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1949 and is the Executive
Chairman of the Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and the Honorary Chairman
of the Company. Having been a Justices of the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan
was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and 6 years later in 2008 he
was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a
member of the 8th & 9th term of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee until he reached the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001; an Honorary Doctoral
Degree of Social Sciences from City University of Hong Kong in 2007 and
in the same year an Honorary University Fellowship from The University of
Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan received another two honorary university
conferments; one was an Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong
Baptist University and the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of
Social Sciences from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training Authority
(1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong (1988-1994)
and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President of Federation of
Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and currently its Life
Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong Woollen & Synthetic
Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and former member of Textile
Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as well as the Hong Kong Labour
Advisory Board (1985-1995).

Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA, aged 66, received a Master’s degree in
Administrative Science from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in the same year. He was appointed as the
Director and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1971
and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board of directors of both
the Company and Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1987. He was appointed
as the Chairman of the board of director of the Company in 2010. Mr. Chan
has been actively involved in garment manufacturing and marketing in the
Far East and the USA for over 30 years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau
and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling,
Shirley.

Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA, aged 64, received a Bachelor’s degree
from the University of Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified
as a Chartered Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited from 1974 to 1988 and has been a director
of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited since 1977. He was appointed as the
Managing Director of the Company from 1987 to 2006 and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company from 2006 to 2010. He was appointed
as the Vice Chairman of the board of director of the Company in 2010. He
is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, JP, is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. She joined Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited in 1973 and was appointed as the Director of Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited in 1983. Madam Chan has extensive experience in the garment
retail and wholesale business. She is a Member of the Textiles Advisory
Board of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the Chairman of the
Garment Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
a Member of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the First Vice-President of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a Member of the Board of Directors
of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Committee Member of the Tianjin
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment and a Council Member of the City University of
Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’'s degree from Nottingham Trent
University, the United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan, aged 61, is the
daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter
and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel.

Mr. Fu Sing Yam, William, age 50, received a Bachelor’s degree from the
University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1984. Mr. Fu joined the Group in
1985. He was appointed as the Director in 1995 and the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company in 2006. He was appointed the Managing Director
of the Company in 2010. He has extensive experience in fashion retailing,
wholesaling, marketing and merchandising. Mr. Fu is a Committee Member
of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Palitical
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 65, received a Bachelor’s degree
in Industrial Engineering in 1970 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
in 1970 as Production Manager and later became Sales Manager. Mr. Chan
was appointed as Director in 1977 and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited in 1987. He is a Director of the Company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Travel International Investment
Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited.
Mr. Chan has participated in many textile negotiations with the USA and
Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member
of The 10th and 11th of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress of China,
Member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau Special
Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board;
Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother
of Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing To, PhD, aged 61, joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was
appointed as Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1983 and the
Company in 1987. Mr. Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
economics from the University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive
experience in the textile and garment business. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Kee.

2011/12 4 #

28



29

EEREBHRTBRAEGB/IT

Directors and Senior Executives Profile

w3 (H)

W x JE B AT #E P

REWSEE EHER - REER - N=H
ZREARFABELIFEATESR  WAPKFR(E
Z L (B i) g w3 B B 2 A N K 2]
BN REE BB AAZR P LARA
AZrFAfTEF LALLM ET AR AR
TLRARA R A [ A R /]~ R
7 W42 AT R D~ O 2 A R W) K
A B AR B A BR A W) 2 S AT

WIRFELEE B+ =% R-FTHEEE
ERA RN B RATE S - MRIEAE S TRERN -
—AAREZFREERETBHERE - BHHEA
REAHHEERE NN E2RNEZEGZE H
NJE  E A TR B e g AT R B e MR
W W) 7E R B AT B A - IR R R AR A PTG
BAEPTHRERTHGTR - WARITRKA
MR W 2 B R AT H T o

WAL L AT ER R -FEZN
TE AT T R 0 W B S0 AT o R AT
T Y 5 R R AHOE E S R R T AR
T H — HAB AR o 72 BE Z A 8 AR B2 B B
o TR W AR 28 A R A e il S A
T K B A R ] R R R A R F
SEHEATE S o B AR R F — AN R
ERHERTHARAFAZ T ESE - SIS
EIEVR NN P i I

AT A R

FALBE A > W FH B A — UL FE A
A H > 1% 3 5 Michel René Enterprises Limited
ZH o fL Yo A R 55 T Y JE A R R
IR TG LA 2 2 B0 o

WS N = R LB R
W R SOR B R B B I R R AR A R
TLRKARAF B H— JLANFR BRI
VO IR A B2 W 2 RS - BRI A Iz 2
I Y 7 K 7 5 RSB o

WK AN R — JUILEE AR EE > 370
R ERMBITERRZ 288 LHE
KA FEME BN HBEFEN+ NE &
[Aquascutum ] & i 48 5 > & 35 5% 0 i 2 Bl
B B LB e SR D
B g A wt )

2011/12 Annual Report

Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA(Practising), aged
77, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in 1998. He is the founding and senior partner of PKF, Accountants and
Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-executive director of Beijing Hong
Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited, and the independent non-
executive director of a number of listed companies, namely Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited, Phoenix Satellite Television
Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and High Fashion International
Limited.

Mr. Lin Keping, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a Member
of the 8th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and an executive member of the 8th All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal and telecommunication
research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications, and other
organizations for years and was an executive vice president of China
Minsheng Bank Corp Limited. He is an independent non-executive director
of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited.

Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP, aged 67, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since March
2010. He was a former executive director of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a position he held for eight years prior to his retirement
on 1 May 2004. Before that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities
in Hong Kong Government. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Swire Pacific Limited and Yangtzekiang Garment Limited. Mr. Sze resigned
as a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Company, Limited in June 2010
and currently acts as consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Company,
Limited.

Senior Executives

Mr. Kenneth Hung, aged 45, joined the Group in 1992. He is the Director
of Michel René Enterprises Limited. Mr. Hung graduated from the University
of Minnesota in the USA and has extensive experience in the apparel retailing
industry.

Mr. Cheng Sai Man, Simon, aged 63, received a Bachelor’'s degree from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1974 and joined Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited in the same year. Mr. Cheng has been General Manager
of YGM Clothing Limited since 1988. He has extensive manufacturing and
commercial experience in China.

Ms. Wong Chau Chun, Angel joined the Group in 1990. She has extensive
experience of management in the apparel retail and wholesale industry, in
particular, in the Greater China region. Ms. Wong, aged 48, is the Brand
Director of Aquascutum and is responsible for overall management, product
development and merchandising, sales and marketing and strategic planning
of the brand.
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Senior Executives (continued)

Ms. Ma Chak Ling, May graduated from University of London, the United
Kingdom. She joined the Group in 1995 and has worked with different
international brands of the Group since then. Ms. Ma, aged 49, has extensive
experience of management in the apparel retail and wholesale industry in
the Greater China region and Southeast Asia and is the Brand Director of
Ashworth, responsible for overall management, product development and
merchandising, sales and marketing and strategic planning of the brand.

Mr. Andrew Chan, aged 34, joined the Group in 2002 and is the Executive
Director and General Manager of Aquascutum International Limited and
Director of YGM Marketing Limited. Mr. Chan attended Skidmore College
in New York majoring in Marketing and received a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the University of Hartford in Connecticut. He has extensive
experience in the fashion retail and wholesale industry in the Great China
region and Southeast Asian markets. Mr. Chan is currently responsible for
overall management and strategic development for J.Lindeberg, Charles
Jourdan, Guy Laroche and Michel Rene and is also responsible for the
development and expansion of Aquascutum in Asian markets. He is the
grandson of Dr. Chan Sui Kau, the son of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, the
nephew of Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Mr. Hendrik H Penndorf, aged 48, joined the Group in 2007 and was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (Directeur General) of Societe Guy
Laroche and the Director of GL Europa S.A.. Mr. Penndorf, trained as a retail
trader, received a MBA degree at Hamburg University, Germany. He worked
for 15 years in the senior management of a German department store chain
group based in Hamburg, Germany in various capacities from buying and
merchandising of fashion. He was the general manager of the department
store chain group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Penndorf worked for 2 years
as the managing director of Euro China Group Hong Kong which is a
boutique consultancy with mainly European blue chip clients.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Sum, Sam, aged 51, received a Bachelor’s degree from
University of Hong Kong in 1983 and joined the Group in the same year. Mr.
Cheung is the EDP Manager of the Group.

Mr. Leung Wing Fat, FCCA, FCFA, aged 52, joined the Group as Financial
Controller in 1996 and was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company in 1998. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is responsible for accounting
and company secretarial matters.

Mr. Ngai Kwai Yung, FCPA, FCPA(Aust.), MBA, aged 54, was appointed
as the Managing Director of Hong Kong Security Printing Limited in 1998.
Mr. Ngai holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Master degree in
Business Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of CPA Australia.
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2011/12 Annual Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
YGM Trading Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YGM Trading
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out
on pages 33 to 115, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2012, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2012
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

#E - F— 4 = H =+ — H Il 4F ¥ For the year ended 31 March 2012
(LA # JC 5 71~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i 2012 2011
Note $°000 $°000
(ZE )
(restated)
R Turnover 3&11 1,377,608 1,154,609
§ & A Cost of sales (461,888) (379,438)
B Gross profit 915,720 775,171
Ho Al g A Other revenue 4 21,841 11,884
HoAth g 25 VF 4R Other net income 4 11,299 5,053
53 84 AR Distribution costs (464,447) (373,786)
1TEE A Administrative expenses (179,507) (159,324)
Hth #4245 & Other operating expenses (3,175) (1,149)
B8 wA = Profit from operations 301,731 257,849
# g7/ XN R TR Net valuation gains on investment properties 12(a) 20,000 20,000
Al B AR Finance costs 5(a) (347) (870)
JBE A 6 % 2> w3 P BES 4H Share of profits less losses of associate 16 46,982 49,128
R A A A A AR T A Net gain on disposal of associate 16(c) 321,169 -
B B Wi i A Profit before taxation 5 689,535 326,107
Jir 15 i Income tax 6(a) (52,218) (38,570)
7 AF JEE e A Profit for the year 637,317 287,537
B Attributable to:
EN/NECIR: i Equity shareholders of the Company 9 632,944 282,934
IE ¥ e HE 45 Non-controlling interests 4,373 4,603
A A JE ik A Profit for the year 637,317 287,537
9 8 7 # Earnings per share 10
BN Basic $3.86 $1.80
i Diluted $3.85 $1.79

FAOH E G HZ Wit B A B IRKZ — bt - &
SE AR 2N A HE 25 IR R G L R 1 S B R E A 27 () 1 o

33 2011/12 Annual Report

set out in note 27(b).

The notes on pages 40 to 115 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends
payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

#E F— 4 = H =+ — H Il “F ¥ For the year ended 31 March 2012

(L4 7 L 3 7w~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Fi RE 2012 2011
Note $°000 $'000
(ZE 4)
(restated)
7 AF JEE ¥t A Profit for the year 637,317 287,537
7% AR BE 3 fib 4 i K AR Other comprehensive income for the year
T 55 W DA SN B 4 D B S Exchange differences on translation of
R T A 0 T S8 25 A financial statements of subsidiaries
based outside Hong Kong (1,749) 11,009
R A e e 2 ) A T £ A Share of exchange reserve of associate (1,903) 6,961
O I N | T E AR Exchange reserve realised upon disposal
b I faf 45 5 31 of associate (3,021) -
BEAHZ T R FEsE Surplus on revaluation of land and
LAY & T EER buildings held for own use upon change
it {8 Bk of use to investment properties 12(e) 383,933 -
377,260 17,970
AR AR B A i G 2 48 A Total comprehensive income for the year 1,014,577 305,507
W )8 - Attributable to:
AR A RE g R Equity shareholders of the Company 1,010,402 299,680
I P I HE 2 Non-controlling interests 4,175 5,827
7 AR B 4 i MK 2 A Total comprehensive income for the year 1,014,577 305,507

R R N S W AN S A o R T TR e 1

B B B JH S e 28

FAOH FHE NS HZ M it JG AR L2 — B0 -

Note: There is no tax expense or benefit in relation to the other
comprehensive income in either the current or the prior year.

The notes on pages 40 to 115 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sﬁéet

= — 4 = H =+ — H At 31 March 2012
(Ll # 7z 4 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

k¥ By ¥E

[6] 7 &

— R EYE

— H AWy 3 - RS
Fe i M

— AR EREA M
Z M g

Y &=
L HE 2 A
g 8 2 W) HE iR
oAt B 5
I JE B I

i B ¥

H At B 5
FHEM® &5
r

JRE s R i % L A WA
FRfE 6 2 B

7 ) ] AR [u] A IH

e kBEFHEY

i B £1 5%

B ARF B s % FE A JRE A 35K
AT R R B X

7 J) 18 AR ot

i Bh ¥ A i

B8 A W U ) £

e i B £1 4%
AT H K
I S il JH £ 1

¥

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant
and equipment

— Interest in leasehold land held for
own use under operating lease

Intangible assets
Lease premium
Interest in associate
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Other financial assets
Trading securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Assets held for sale
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank loans and overdrafts
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

12(a)

13
14
16
17
26(b)

22
23(a)
26(a)

26(b)

83,400 63,400
124,930 122,042
5,465 5,384
213,795 190,826
286,458 287,238
10,450 9,928
180,593 139,692
785 69,781
48,810 51,583
740,891 748,948
71,424 -
1,613 2,352
150,488 102,007
145,044 125,442
848 537
426,919 214,550
796,336 444,888
211,115 168,488
35,5636 46,959
29,674 18,134
276,325 233,581
520,011 211,307
1,260,902 960,255
- 1,551

8,517 8,157
8,517 9,708
1,252,385 950,547




JBe A B ikt CAPITAL AND RESERVES
e A Share capital 27(c) 81,105 76,916
fitt i Reserves 1,147,365 851,215
A 2 W) I Total equity attributable to

A5 R 2 B8 7 shareholders of the Company 1,228,470 928,131
I P B B A Non-controlling interests 23,915 22,416
HE % 44 % TOTAL EQUITY 1,252,385 950,547

HEREREGN T - ZFEARNHA N H BEHELFF
AEEH

Bie & %

Bie & %%

i
4

A0H E G115 H Z Wk i A iRk 2z — A -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 June

2012.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Directors
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

—_ — — — —

The notes on pages 40 to 115 form part of these financial statements.
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&HE 8 E K
Balance Sheet

W F— 4 = =+ — H At 31 March 2012
(LA 3# Tt 51 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

F 5 2012 2011
Note $°000 $000
I ot wh Non-current assets
[ 78 B Fixed assets 12(b) 384
Rff & s F) & Investments in subsidiaries 15 836,418
Wi 4% N wHE 2% Interest in associate 16 12,595
849,397
i W A Current assets
HoAh B B K Other financial assets 17 33,834
EE & H® &5 Trading securities 18 1,613
JRE WA T R B L At B A K Trade and other receivables 20 819
7 H ] AR (B ol IH Current tax recoverable 26(a) 388
Bl RS EY Cash and cash equivalents 21(a) 163,394
200,048
i B 1 4% Current liabilities
JRE AT B K % L Al JE AT 3K Trade and other payables 22 66,571
Ui W R Net current assets 133,477
B8 % e U B B0 Total assets less current liabilities 982,874
et B £ g Non-current liabilities
R SiE B TH £ i Deferred tax liabilities 26(b) 60
¥ 7 NET ASSETS 982,814
JBe A B ik A CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27(a)
i &N Share capital 81,105
fiti M Reserves 901,709
HE 2 A8 7 TOTAL EQUITY 982,814

EHREFHR F - FEANA P ANH RN Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 June

AT o 2012,
Bl & % ) Chan Wing Fui, Peter )
) )
) EH ) Directors
Bl & % ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )
) )
FEAOH ZHE 16 H 2 M il B A M B IRE L —d0 » The notes on pages 40 to 115 form part of these financial statements.
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GaEmZ2EkX
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

#E F— 4 = H =+ — H Il “F ¥ For the year ended 31 March 2012
(L4 7 It 5 71~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FREALARERR
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAER T REF
W3t kA R Bl RARE  MERE  GERE (REEA A% FRREE ERAE
Land and
Capital buildings
Share Share redemption Captel ~ Exchange  revaluation  Retained Non-controling Total
Note captal premium 16Senve TESeNve T6Seve f6Senve profts Totdl  interests equty
oo fo0 g0 000 o0 SO0 §00 S0 o0 $000
(WzEori) (Wzkorn) (Rakerion) (W zk2ri) (Rsk2rci) (W & 27di)
(Note 27(c)  (Note 27(c))) (Note 27(c)) (Note 27(c) (Note 27(cil) (Note 27(d){u))
REZ-FEWA~H  Balanceat 1 April 2010,
(LW %) as previously reported 916 133383 466 2238 5689 - B9 9243 22057 94470
GHHREHZ Impact of change In acoounting
ve polcy 2b) - - - - - - 5718 5,718 39 6,077
REZ-ZEWA~H  Balanceat 1 April 2010
(H#) (restated) 76916 133,383 4,646 22,323 5,689 - 685,174 928,131 2,416 990,547
Ba%h: Changes in equity:
AR (ﬁi&) Proftfor the year (estated) 2] - - - - - - 0% 28203 4603 267537
Efbzmia Other comprehensive income - - - - 1676 - - 16746 1204 17970
KERRANEEE  Totd comprehensive income
& (estatec) - - - - 16T - W% 20 58T BAN
RiERIL Lapse of share options - - - (15) - - 115 - - -
RESELS Eouity-settled share-based
o fransactions - - - 562 - - - 562 - 562
Eﬁfﬁ #y Shares issued under
gkE share opfion scheme 00 4189 1136 ] - - B (AN B (VA
AEFECER Dividends approved and paid n
Eﬁﬂig respect of the previous year 27l - - - - - N T e ] S xs]
KFEEERKE Dividends declared i respect
- of the current year 21(0)) - - - - - - (40,501) (40,501) - (40,501)
ERFRREERE  Dividendspaidto
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - (4,328) (4,328
RoF-—k Balance at
SAZE-RER) ot March 201 frestated) B 4706 AR5 080 245 - WBI9 12840 B9 12535
g Balance at 1 Aprl 2011,
MA-H(EMRE)  aspreviously reported 81105 247015 4646 08 24% - 8TA0 1210701 23307 1243008
@‘JH%@?Z Impact of change In accounting
2. polcy 2b) - - - - - - 8,769 8,769 608 9377
REZ-—EWA~0  Balanceat 1 April 2011
(H#) (restated) 81,106 247,015 4,646 7,080 22,43 - 866,189 1228470 23916 1262385
Ragh: Changes in equity:
ME‘%MJ Proft for the year - - - - - - 6RM 63204 4313 67317
Efezmila Other comprehensive income - - - - b 38393 - (199 377260
REEATNESE T comprehensiveincome - - - - [6475) 363933 632944 1010402 4175 1014577
k ﬁﬂE e Shares issued under
EfRR share option scheme 00 128 6T - ) - - - 306 - 310
AEFECMER Dividends approved and paid
Eﬁﬂ&g inrespect of the previous year 270 - - - - - - (128303 (123309) - (123309
KEEEERKE Dividends deckred i respect
- of the current year 21)0) - - - - - - (49,321) (49,321) - 49,321)
ENFEREGRE  Diidends paidto
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - (3229 (3.229)
o S
R0 Balance at 31 March 2012 82,380 261,688 4,646 2,149 1590 383933 1,326,509 2,097,274 24861 2,122,136
FBAOH EHEEH L Ml B A MEBREZ — 80 - The notes on pages 40 to 115 form part of these financial statements.
2011/12 4 #
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Consolidated Cashflow Statement

#E F— 4 = H =+ — H I 4F & For the year ended 31 March 2012
(L4 i It 5 71~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B 5 2012 2011
Note $°000 $'000
BN Operating activities
MEEBEEZB & Cash generated from operations 21(b) 255,480 256,407
£ AT Bl I Tax paid
e AT A v A 15 B Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (34,250) (14,639)
2 1 7 s A % Hb [ Ao T Tax paid outside Hong Kong (15,635) (8,544)
AR (8] 7 s ) A5 B Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 254 521
5B [n] 7 s DL AN M [ B IE Tax refund outside Hong Kong - 74
BRI EA 2B A8 Net cash generated from
operating activities 205,849 233,819
B Investing activities
W A [ 2 A A K Payment for the purchase of fixed assets (24,428) (22,540)
B i E T 1S R IE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 86 71
e BT & A T AT S OE TR A Net proceeds from disposal of
club memberships 567 =
0 g A R R Increase in interest in associate 16(b) (40,483) =
R T8 AN W T S RO T AR Net proceeds from disposal of
interest in associate 16(c) 591,037 -
Tk 28 /N v A R 3K Loan repaid by associate 33,907 -
WEAME B & 2SR Payment for the purchase of
trading securities - (15,720)
Al B S E B T A 3k I Proceeds received upon maturity of
other financial assets 37,380 -
HEERE AR Z &SNS R Proceeds from disposal of trading securities - 15,733
[BALQ -/l 5 Dividends received from associate 23,291 15,088
£ R 47 A Bank interest received 1,991 422
i A ﬁj & Interest received from associate 1,160 1,907
. i H At A1) 2L Other interest received 500 1,184
Bl b TR S R Dividends received from listed securities 16 16
BewWmH AL (i) 2B ETB Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 625,024 (3,839)
T 35 W) Financing activities
8 32 SR AT B K Repayment of bank loans (31,517) (9,234)
R S Interest paid (347) (870)
B AT A 28 AR 28 R 2 % S Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the Company 27(b) (172,624) (102,034)
AT 08 B B 5T B R 83 47 R 3 T 5. 3K 8 Proceeds from shares issued
under share option scheme 27(c)(i) 31,026 102,111
£ A IF 2 B HE 23 B S Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (3,229) (4,328)
Tl O 9T T 2 B A i Net cash used in financing activities (176,691) (14,355)
Bl & K B4 55 00 B I i A Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 654,182 215,625
TRAER 2 Bl & B BL & 5 e Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 423,101 204,706
MW RER SR W) 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2,272 2,770
RAERZB & RB &S MY Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 21(a) 1,079,555 423,101

FAOH FHE S HZ M it JG AR R LK — B0 -
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The notes on pages 40 to 115 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 5 45 B 15 4F - ¥ LI i o€ %1 717~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as set out in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

2011/12 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(K% 3 4 Br 15 4F > 5 LUt o 91 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f)) or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate (see note 1(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k(i)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
notes 1(f) and (k)()). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in the consoldiated
income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 1(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)(i)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments
as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in notes 1(t)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1(K)(i)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the balance sheet
date and their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(t)fiii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease (see note 1())), and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1()).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(k)(ii)):

— land classified as being held under finance leases and
buildings thereon (see note 1()));

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land classified as held under operating leases (see note 1()));
and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in land and
buildings revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Where land and buildings are transferred from investment
properties, “cost” represents the fair value at the date of change
in use of the properties.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has relied upon
the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect that
fair value of investment property transferred to land and buildings
in prior years has been treated as the deemed cost of those land
and buildings at the date of transfer. Such previously revalued
land and buildings have not been revalued to fair value at the
balance sheet date and are stated at deemed cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and will not be
revalued in future years.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the remaining term of
the lease.

—  Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery 10 years

—  Leasehold improvements, motor vehicles,
furniture and equipment 210 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revalution surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and it not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@)

G)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Licences acquired by the Group with a finite estimated useful
economic life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k(ii)). Amortisation of licences
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
to which the licence relates.

Trademark acquired and lease premiums paid by the Group with
an indefinite estimated useful life are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(K)(ii). Expenditure on internally generated
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see
note 1(g)); and
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

U

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under afinance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or
valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(h). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(k)(ii).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(g)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

U

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and associates (including
those recognised using the equity method (see note
1(d))), the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 1(k)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1 (K(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

U

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

- Ifinasubsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being
held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets; and
- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

@

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost s calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(k)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

(o)

(r)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q9)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iiy ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses.



0 B i & B aE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 3 4 Br #5 4F > 2 LUt o 91 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

F = 5 B (8
(r) Fr3R(4)

B T K e ) A1 A DL AL o B A A SE R
JH £ R AR S B JE (R FR A AT g
HE 15 RE A M 5% R I B H B E AR K 4T
2R B SR ik ) R D o SR
it w8 ER T K R 2 BB E AR AR AT
B IH & E 2 R 20 I BB i A 45
W m] H AT AF TR 2 M BR B R R
A B HE e ] 2 2 B
JH BL[R] — 0 5 M B % ] — B R B R
B AT B o Sl TE 9 AE AT ST W R
T At A 2 [ — ) S A B H &
FE FIT JEE PR B I gl 4R AT A 2 0 A
WIE] o AE P E AT AFTE SR B
RF 25 R R R DL SRR AR i R B
Tt JE M 18 % 41K BT 7 AR 2 R JE B A
B > IR SRR ] — M A B A%
S 78 5B [A) — i B 0K B % ) — AR
Bt B A B o Sl TE 0 AE T D B
B i 18 SR o 2 (R — 0 ] B2 R
[ ] R % GE 22 AR

fife 5 A AT B VE RN R A0 ) A0
LS R A AT AR 40 B 2 ) 22 v R
FE R 2 B 25 B R AR ON B Y
g wt U R I ) 2 R (i
A JEFEH G OF 2 — w8 hy) o DA K B %
g0y AR P R S
45 [ R 22 ) ] 2 IR [R] R hT RE R &
AT T SR AR m] o J) R R R R B
7 B BROJE 25 BT gE R R AR [m]
0 S B AT A A 2 B o

A RBEEI R ZEEY R g5t
B LB RE 1(g) > R A B IH AR Y
275 fif i &5 5 B W1 4% IR T (B
YrEm EAENBAG R EREY
SEJE TS K DA — i e BT R AT
1 A7 B A% 2SI JF 2 o B oK
A 5% ) 3 A8 R R 0y KL I R A PR Ab
FC A1 DL 8 e BRI HE B I BORR
T CE e B R T 2 TE
o O A DU &5 H OB R
TN 2 BRI o BB K E
LA EH AT B AR -

AL B e TE R A B R AR E B
TH U 2 BRI (E o WA AT AR A
J2 4 R e R LA AR B 2 B S
A 46 5% 0% I8 B & E 2 MR T (E 68
o A% s (AW H AR AT RE AT R A
2 MERRBL R A > A B ol R A ]

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(g), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the balance sheet date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

M

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(s)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can
be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with note 1(s)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the date
of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note 1(s(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

Sale of goods

Revenue arising from the sale of garments and printing
products is recognised when goods are delivered to the
customer which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income

— Interest income from dated debt securities intended to
be held to maturity is recognised as it accrues, as
adjusted by the amortisation of the premium or discount
on acquisition, so as to achieve a constant rate of return
over the period from the date of purchase to the date
of maturity.

— Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi) Decoration fee income

Decoration fee income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

(w) Assets held for sales

An asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the
asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed
of together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates) and investment properties. These assets, even
if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised
in profit or loss. As long as a asset is classified as held for sale,
orisincluded in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale,
the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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(i)
(i
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

B K BEIL A - person in their dealings with the entity.
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) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines

of business and geographical locations.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(y) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

2 Changes in accounting policies

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs first effective for the current accounting

period

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

—  HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related
party. As aresult, the Group has re-assessed the identification
of related parties and concluded that the revised definition
does not have any material impact on the Group’s related
party disclosures in the current and previous period. HKAS
24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. This does not
impact the Group because the Group is not a government-
related entity.

—  Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures.
The disclosures about the Group’s financial instruments in
note 28 have been conformed to the amended disclosure
requirements. These amendments do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition and measurements
of the amounts recognised in the financial statements in the
current and previous periods.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(@)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRSs first effective for the current accounting

period (continued)

- HK(FRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments

HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters a relevant transaction
(for example, a debt for equity swap).

—  Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a
defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and
their interaction — Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement

The amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14 have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements as they were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.

The Group has early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets
(*famendments to HKAS 12”) in respect of the recognition of
deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair value under
HKAS 40, Investment property. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as
permitted by the amendments, the Group has decided to adopt
the amendments early.

Other than the early adoption of amendments to HKAS 12, the
Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

Early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12

The change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS 12
is the only change which has had a material impact on the current
or comparative periods. As a result of this change in policy, the
Group now measures any deferred tax liability in respect of its
investment properties with reference to the tax liability that would
arise if the properties were disposed of at their carrying amounts
at the reporting date. Previously, where these properties were
held under leasehold interests, deferred tax was generally
measured using the tax rate that would apply as a result of
recovery of the asset’s value through use.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b) Early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12 (continued)

This change in policy has been applied retrospectively by restating
the opening balances at 1 April 2010 and 2011, with consequential
adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2011.
As the Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong, this has
resulted in a reduction in the amount of deferred tax provided on
valuation gains as follows:

WRA(H &
1wt 1)
W25k
i E S i 5 i
Effect of
As adoption of
previously amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated

$°000 $°000 $°000

A masER Consolidated balance

B —-—4E=ZA=Z1+—H sheet as at 31 March 2011

IR JE B JEH & Deferred tax liabilities 17,894 (9,377) 8,517

7 B8 A Retained profits 857,420 8,769 866,189

I PE I HE 27 Non-controlling interests 23,307 608 23,915
HEaEEARER Consolidated balance

R -F4ENA—H sheet as at 1 April 2010

R SE B IH & Deferred tax liabilities 14,234 (6,077) 8,157

17 B8 LA Retained profits 679,456 5,718 685,174

I T A 22 Non-controlling interests 22,057 359 22,416
HEARRERE Consolidated income

2 —-—4E=ZA=1+—H statement for the year

kAR JE ended 31 March 2011

JT 15 Fl Income tax 41,870 (3,300) 38,570

A AF B Y A B Profit for the year

attributable to:
— AR A RE g R — Equity shareholders of the 279,883 3,051 282,934
Company

— I IR A — Non-controlling interests 4,354 249 4,603

g e 8 ) Earnings per share

HA Basic $1.78 $0.02 $1.80

1 1 Diluted $1.77 $0.02 $1.79
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3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out on pages 114 to 115 to the financial statements.
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Turnover (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 3 4 Br 5 4F > 2 Lt o 91 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, royalty and related income, income from printing and related
services and rental income. The amount of each significant category
of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

BB
2012 2011
$000 $'000
BAK 8 B Sales of garments 1,225,724 1,021,638
SR R S A B U A Royalty and related income 106,982 91,746
EN Rl K A B AR 5 Wi 2 Income from printing and related services 42,870 39,448
G 2T A A B Gross rentals from investment properties 2,032 1,777
1,377,608 1,154,609

AEWZEF + 02l I W &
J5 B 52 5 R R A AR SRR — o

B A 4R T BB L b R O T

B R M FESE A1 IH -

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no individual customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed

in note 11 to these financial statements.

Il e A B WK 2% i B 4 Other revenue and net income
2012 2011
$°000 $'000
H i e A Other revenue
SR AT R B A Bank interest income 3,462 422
B s\ R R A Interest income from associate 1,160 1,907
HoAth F Bl A Other interest income 500 1,184
RS A Total interest income 5,122 3,513
FEERA Decoration fee income 8,781 3,854
RV ON Compensation income 3,000 -
JRE iz 15 1 3K Claims receivable 1,882 992
1& W # A Alteration charges 233 341
EEE Sz B A A Dividend income from listed securities 16 16
HAth Others 2,807 3,168
21,841 11,884
HAfb e 25 () 8 3 Other net income/(loss)
FE 58, i %5 1 4R ) Net exchange gain 10,960 5,999
T A E AR 2 IR TR Net loss on disposal of fixed assets (96) (220)
HEGHEgR 2B G Net realised gain on disposal of
3 club memberships 457 -
EEEEEAGRZERZ Net realised gain on
T 3 Bl UL 25 13 disposal of trading securities - 13
EEEME 2 HBHREEZ Net unrealised loss
7 5 B e 4H T R on trading securities (22) (739)
11,299 5,053
2011/12 4 #
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(K% 3 4 Br 15 4F > 5 LUt o 91 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 BR BL i Wi A
3 B ik A E A1 B (REA)

(@) FE WA (@)

RIS T 4F T 26 B R 2 R AT
BB SR B

b) BTHA" (b)
FE OB IR E
Z K
DL A & 2 3
(I 3L 58 25 7H)
Brd - L8 RHAAEF

) HthEH (©

22 ¢4

— R S
— S J5 G ST
— Mot % B fi

— B M 5

mEmEaEm

- & EfHE

— Yy 37 & (/45 37,435,000 T
(=% ——4 32,913,000 7C)
A & T 30

Y 6 8 (W R 5513 0H)
] 5 AT R R fH
(B 5555 12(0) TH) *
Y & 2 W 1R
(Bt 5% 25 1318)
JHE Wiz R S L At B ik 2
U8 (E s 18 (5 55 20(0) JH)
JRE WS B e At 1 Sk ek
Jis 1815 ] (BfF &E: 58 20(0) )
JRE 1 W 5 > ) B IR
58 W 2 0 A 4 U B
37 419,000 7T
(=% ——4 :301,0007C)
17 88 WA (Bt 32 55 19(b) )

* A7 15 R 45 BB TR 3T 8 T M
U 2 O A B 2 40,626,000 0C (&
— —4£ 137,412,000 7C) - £ B HE R T
FOOA b 3 B M T AR 5() JE 43 A 1 R 2 4%
o AR o
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5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Finance costs

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
wholly repayable within five years

Staff costs*

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses (note 25)

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Other items

Auditors’ remuneration
- audit services

- KPMG

— other auditors
— tax services

Operating lease charges*

— hire of equipment

- property rentals (including contingent
rental payments of $37,435,000
(2011: $32,913,000))

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13)

Depreciation and amortisation of
fixed assets (note 12(a))*

Impairment loss on intangible
assets (note 13)

Impairment loss on trade debtors and
bills receivable (note 20(b))

Reversal of impairment loss on trade
debtors and bills receivable (note 20(b))

Share of associate’s taxation

Rentals receivable from investment
properties less direct outgoings of
$419,000 (2011: $301,000)

Cost of inventories* (note 19(b))

870

16,680

582

187,367

204,629

2,747
904
402

4,053

1,426

191,046

192,472

780

21,650

1,081

(426)
9,142

(1,476)

379,438

* Cost of inventories includes $40,626,000 (2011: $37,412,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each

of these types of expenses.
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6 HOaHERMMNZIINABR 6 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(a) #EHBEITIZHIEY : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2012 2011
$°000 $000
(E )
(restated)
7R BLB — 7 e AU 1 B Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
AR AE B Al Provision for the year 38,141 21,795
DA TE GBI /R 2 3 (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (3,490) 81
34,651 21,876
ABIBLH — F U E Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
N $ JiE Provision for the year 17,429 12,101
DA 4 R 4l G Rl Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 1,915 (499)
19,344 11,602
4B 4 B8 Deferred tax
E % fﬂ 135 1] 7 WRF 1 R ‘ Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,730) 4,442
Bl K i ﬁiﬁzli A JEE 1 400 A% 4 Effect on deferred tax balances at the beginning
o T £ B 52 2 of the year resulting from a decrease in tax rate (47) 650
(1,777) 5,092
52,218 38,570
A W I A5 B i 4 % AR The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is calculated at
filit ERBL 6 1 1916.6% (— % ——4F 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
16.5%) 5 & ° year.
A LA SN b 1 B Ja§ 2% w2 B IE B L Taxation for subsidiaries based outside Hong Kong is charged at
A B R 2 BLAT B R . the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
jurisdictions.
MK A B A e N R S R (R ) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
A Ry R s A B T R — Republic of China (“PRC”), one of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
M E A=A EELE 55— enjoys preferential tax rate until 31 December 2012.
LT A=+ —Heo
TEBTBLE T o AP B A H AR SR Under the new tax law, a 10% withholding tax will also be levied
) RN Tl /NI O S ) SN R 3 on dividends declared to foreign investors from the Group’s PRC
U 10% AN BL - AR 0 > ZH I 10% subsidiaries, however, only the dividends attributable to the profits
MBS Ak E FFTN of the financial period starting from 1 January 2008 will be subject
A — A — H R I B [ i A S to the withholding tax. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
i e B0 B A B A% T AL S R if there is a tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and the
Z [ 5] A BB 6 B 1k > R AT e iR jurisdiction of the foreign investor. Pursuant to a double tax
I T8 40 Bl 2R BB o AR B8 b B BR A arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong, the Group is
2 Wy OB 2 Bk AR 4 [ ZH subject to a withholding tax at a rate of 5% for any dividend
A AT R R W BT AT payments from its PRC subsidiaries.
AR A] P 245 % H FEATBE S8 4 LA
wEE _F—-_"F=ZHAH=+—H1k During the year ended 31 March 2012, the United Kingdom (“UK”)
o S I S = R R tax authority announced a decrease in the corporate tax rate
FR O A AR T AE e B 2E Y B R - i applicable to the Group’s operations in UK from 28% to 26%.
28% 1 % 26% ° A~ 4 [ fi B B 1k The decrease is taken into account in the preparation of the
O &k o b 4l Wi o BB > A BE A 4R Group’s financial statements. Accordingly, the deferred tax
ERREER N - F——4F1WJ—H liabilities as at 1 April 2011 in respect of the Group’s operations
) A0 SIE B B B i 45 26% 1Y Bl R E A in the UK was calculated using a tax rate of 26%.
i - E=H=+—H> 868 During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Taiwan Government
BT B A A R A 4R B TR B announced a decrease in the corporate tax rate applicable to the
PR H25% M E17% o A 5 Group’s operations in Taiwan from 25% to 17%. The decrease is
VP A S A R S R taken into account in the preparation of the Group’s 2011 financial
JE st K bl g o R i T statements. Accordingly, the deferred tax liabilities as at 1 April
EPH — H A B A SE B AL & 8T 2010 in respect of the Group’s operations in Taiwan was calculated
F) 99 4] A% 4E Bl S B AR 17 % 1 B R using a tax rate of 17%.
GG
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(b) P 14 B 3 Hi A o it din A 3% 08 B F

Al #Z R

bR Bt i it A

13 BETE A B B K 2 T
B3R 5t 5 B Bl it A
ZHEBEA

AT B S 2 BT B

FARBL A 2 BLIE B

AF 7 HE 8 DAAE AR B OR T AR
B s 15 19 3

RUERR 2 B 1R 2 B

B 24 16K 36 A% 4 12 300 ) AR A
BLIE R W0 B
LU A JE 2 38

P B IR B S

7 HHEHM4E

R A (o A R 1) 55 161 1 9 i 2 3 5%

[LES .

iy Executive Directors
W B 2k Chan Sui Kau
Wk % Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Bk 5 Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
J BB Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
iR Fu Sing Yam, Willam
B Ak AL Chan Wing Kee
% & Chan Wing To
B HBA Independent
#H Non-executive Directors
B Leung Hok Lim
s P Lin Keping
Tt AL+ Sze Cho Cheung, Michael
ERM =% WongLam (resigned on
— A 6 May 2010)
AN B EEE)
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ax in the consolidate?income statement

(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation 326,107

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated
at the rates applicable to profits in the

countries concerned 42,948
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,327
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (12,330)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in

prior years utilised during the year -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,393
Effect on deferred tax balances at the beginning

of the year resulting from a decrease in tax rate 650
Over-provision in prior years (418)
Actual tax expense 38,570

7 Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2,693
1,055
5,007
5,969
4,594

30

30

160
80
120

60
19,798
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7

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The details of share options granted to certain directors under the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed under the section
“Share option scheme” in the Directors’ Report and note 25 to the
financial statements. No share options were granted to the directors
in the current or the prior years.

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2011: four)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
emoluments of the other individual for the year ended 31 March 2012
are as follows:

2012 2011

$°000 $'000

B 4 B HoAth T 4 Salaries and other emoluments 2,186 1,648
9 72 {E 4L Discretionary bonuses 256 253
FERUNC K Retirement scheme contributions - -
2,442 1,901

A 2 W) HE A B B HE Al ik A

AN ) ME R B RO A &5 A T A S — 4
[ /N NIE/NS T O < G- |
781,174,000 7 ( & — — 4F : 253,797,000
Jo) °

7 b A

(a) FF AR HF
BB AR R P IR 2 AN
FIHE %5 F HRE AL %5 F1632,944,0007C (—
X —— 4 (E W) : 282,934,000 7C) K
BB A7 % 0 RE T 1 A

9

10

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $781,174,000 (2011: $253,797,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$632,944,000 (2011 (restated): $282,934,000) and the weighted
average of 163,807,000 (2011: 157,290,000) ordinary shares in

163,807,000 IE ( — & — — 4 issue during the year, calculated as follows:
157,290,000/%) wtH& - FHAFEHMT
748 J]E 119 0 HRE T 24 i B Weighted average number of ordinary shares
2012 2011
’000 ‘000
AR AT Y Issued ordinary shares at the beginning
of the year 162,211 153,832
T8 IS A A7 ) s Effect of share options exercised 1,596 3,458
A 0 A B 1Y) i HE 7 24 M B Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the end of the year 163,807 157,290

2011/12 4 #
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10 4 B & A (s0) 10 Earnings per share (continued)
(b) 1 )it 4k 3 7 F (b) Diluted earnings per share
(RS R PR NS A NN The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
)R o R R E A\ Vs F11632,944,0007T (— attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
F— — 4 (FE ) : 282,934,000) K $632,944,000 (2011 (restated): $282,934,000) and the weighted
3 % 1 T RT3 B #401 64,228,000 % (— average number of ordinary shares of 164,228,000 (2011:
F — —4E 1 157,813,000 %) 754 > #f 157,813,000) shares, calculated as follows:
BEEHN
70 1Y 0 HE T K % (R ) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
2012 2011
’000 ‘000
A S8 A B A i HE - 24 M B Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the end of the year 163,807 157,290
e AN T B R ) DA A Effect of deemed issue of shares under the
FRAB AR 3547 I M 119 % 228 Company’s share option scheme for nil
consideration 421 523
AT 4 0 B0 R T 34 i Weighted average number of ordinary shares
() (diluted) at the end of the year 164,228 157,813
11 4 # # % 11 Segment reporting
A A5 [ 37 AR e SE S A AL R o) ER A B SR o The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
EHnAEH KRG ETHEE ARG by business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
R P B K 2% BLET Ak 0 50 TE R & R — 3 information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
Jr o AL B RN AR R Ao management for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
A 45 T N7 A A R A BB A OF o DA B A assessment, the Group has presented the following four reportable
Y R e segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.
— PHERIK EE S FE ALK - - Sales of garments: the manufacture, retail and wholesale of
garments.
= RREFTE R A B R g i v A A - Licensing of trademarks: the management and licensing of
FF B B o trademarks for royalty income.
— BN R AH B OMR BS AR E R B ED - Printing and related services: the manufacture and sale of printed
E i o products.
— YEME:  BHYEELEHESRA - - Property rental: the leasing of properties to generate rental income.
(a) BEE - BERXRAME (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
R AR B 2R B 45 B H 2 R For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
B B S > A 4R AT U A allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
B ARYE T 5 IE 4 s 2 B4 executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
G A attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

2011/12 Annual Report
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11 2 3 % (80)
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11 Segment reporting (continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of interest in associate, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, trading securities, club memberships,
current tax recoverable, cash and cash equivalents and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables and bank borrowings with the exception of current tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA”, i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including investment income and “depreciation and amortisation”
is regarded as including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as share of profits less losses of associate and
other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest
income and expenses from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation, amortisation
and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segments sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.
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RESMEF ZIA
Revenue from external customers
g TN

Inter-segment revenue

RSV LN

Reportable segment revenue

R ZAR (AR RA)
Reportable segment profit (adjusted EBITDA)
G vaTION

Bank interest income

FELH

Interest expense

REEZEREH

Depreciation and amortisation for the year
Rl B

Reportable segment assets
REEREFRBHE

Additions to non-current segment assets during the year
ARG AR

Reportable segment liabilities

reporting (continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 is set
out below:

1,154,609
28,396

1,183,005

301,302

01

(244) (670)
(18,554) (22,207)
369,809 329,329 815,930
21,300 o 22540
177,228 69,971 251,373
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11 Segment reporting (continued)

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue

Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Consolidated turnover

Profit
Reportable segment profit

Elimination of inter-segment profits

Reportable segment profit derived from the

Group’s external customers
Other revenue
Other net income/(loss)
Depreciation and amortisation

Net valuation gains on investment properties

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associate

Net gain on disposal of associate

Impairment losses on non-current assets
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before taxation

Assets
Reportable segment assets

Elimination of inter-segment receivables

Interest in associate

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Trading securities

Club memberships
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Unallocated head office and corporate assets

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities

Elimination of inter-segment payables

Current tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities

1,183,005
(28,396)

1,154,609

301,302
(7,911)

293,391
3,529
(946)
(22,430)
20,000
(870)
49,128

(15,695)

326,107

815,930
(11,013)

804,917
180,593
72,209
48,810
1,613
860

848
426,919
458

1,637,227

251,373
(11,013)

240,360
29,674
8,517
6,291

284,842
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11 %> # & % (80 11 Segment reporting (continued)
(c) Hb [ 53 i & #F (c) Geographic information
TR # A LR I A O R The following table sets out information about the geographical
WARLEKR[INAREF Z A Kii) location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
ALEFZEEEE EBEEE HE (iiy the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets, lease premium and
HE & 1 B Bk s W) 2 R R (RF 8 IR interest in associate (“specified non-current assets”). The
MEIEE) o B 2 b [& 43 ffi 2 3L ik geographical location of customers is based on the location at
1 5 $2 Ak R B & K E b s T 4R E which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
FnEEEdb - MEEEAHER geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
FH B4 b [ 40 A J2 22 7 LB R i 7E b on the physical location of the asset, in the case of fixed assets
T & E B b I A R A R H A B and lease premium, the location to which they are managed, in
ST AE M5 T W B ED R R R L the case of intangible assets, and the location of operations, in
E Hby o the case of interest in associate.
KEAMREFPBRA 2 Ik W) 5
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $'000 $°000 $000
s (G Hb) Hong Kong (place of domicilg) 617,508 538,453 279,031 315,603
=R Taiwan 118,749 115,071 4,881 170,072
e At 3 [ Other areas of the PRC 576,082 439,087 54,510 53,552
Ho Aty Others 65,269 61,098 150,490 152,069

760,100 616,156 209,881 375,693

1,377,608 1,154,609 488,912 691,296
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Cost or valuation:

At 1 April2010
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

Fair value adjustment

At31 March 2011
Representing:

Cost
Valuation - 2011

At 1 April 2011

Exchange adjustments

Addtions

Transfer to investment
properties

Disposals

Fair value adjustment

Transfer to assets held
for sale

At 31 March 2012
Representing:

Cost
Valuation - 2012

(a)

The Group

132610 948 13140 31348 8670 63400 385,568
169 1,198 3677 6570 397 - 6.967

- 1023 21317 22,50 - - 22,540

- - 16009 (16009 - - (16,003

- - - - - 20,000 20,000

134305 51830 140461 326605 9067 83400 419072

134,305 51839 140461 36605 9067 - 3Ben

- - - - - 83400 83400

134305 51830 140461 36606 9,067 83400 419072

134305 51830 140461 326606 9,067 83400 419072

1401 98 1516 3906 39 - 4234

- 260 24,168 24428 - - 2428

2 (47.699) - - (47,699 - 3,067 (11,626)
- - 2819 (1281 - - (1281)

- - - - e R !

12) - - - - - 0000 (#20000)
8013 53087 153333 094433 9% 13400 407229

8013 53087 153333 094433 9% S

- - - - S0 103400

8013 53087 153333 29443 9% 13400 407229




Rt RARIE

REF-FENA-H
Ei A%
RERERRTE
&R
REF-—F=f=t-H

REF——FNA—H
E Ji o &
REERHRITE
BRBENEL WS

i 5
| St e
Wi :
REF-"EZA=1-H

REF-—E=Zf=+-0

Accumulated
amortisation
and depreciation:

At 1 Aprl2010

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Witten back on disposals

At 31 March 2011

At 1 April 2011

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Eliminated on transfer to
investment properties

Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2012

Net book value:

At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

(a) The Group (continued)

14944 0727 106785 191456 3286 - 1T
789 604 2,966 4443 154 - 4507
3134 1,930 16424 21,488 162 - 21,650

- - 5712 {571 - - (15712

48861 12,351 10463 201675 3602 - s

48861 12,31 110463 201675 3602 - s
663 504 1126 2383 13 - 2516
3076 1,731 21,94 26,901 1 - 26972

(11,626) - - (11,629) - - (11,626)

- - 12630 (12690 - - (12630)
_g _Mee 0% 6608 3% - 210508

47,09 8411 32,380 8783 5490 103400 196720

85,444 9488 008 124990 5465 B0 2137%




(c)

(d)

SR
TR A4
~E

AR

Rl 5 :
T A4
A AF B A A

AR
S 16 ¥ L
T AR R

B E Wy S AN

AEEPABEDECOR F —
EZHA = — H AR 8 R AT
B — KT BARE S A R B 3 R A
BR 2% A 45 2 A & U A T3 R G B R
Yy EmLEBEHE# AR A
BH T (S EEAT Al (- 2 A F 2 B
ThTBENEMETERTR B
JIr Ak (L9 3 2 Ao B K A B S A B o

(b) The Company

Cost:
At the beginning of the year
Additions

At the end of the year

Accumulated depreciation:
At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

At the end of the year

Net book value:
At the end of the year

(¢) Revaluation of investment properties

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
March 2012 on an open market value basis calculated by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of
the properties being valued.

7K 5 B Wy 3 2 R I G B A (d) The analysis of net book value or valuation of properties of the

wF

i
—RUEE
— TR

U DL Al [
— TR
— T

% :

+ o R T
Bk

MRS M E R E A M
Z L - A

Group is as follows:

In Hong Kong
— long leases
— medium-term leases

Outside Hong Kong
— medium-term leases
— short-term leases

Representing:

Land and buildings
Investment properties

Interest in leasehold land held for
own use under operating lease

36,990
101,685

25,478
10,156

174,309

85,444
83,400

168,844

5,465

174,309

— 76
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12 Wl & & & (80)
(e) W23 #2503 e 15 1 ) £ 5 3

REE - F—"HF=ZHA=Z+—HI
AERE > HE T {H /£ 36,067,000 i T 45 1
SRR DS = RS L E
R o =X A A4 Bk A 1A Ak
J7 B BURE 4 o N s Al O aUE A
W N A o 8 (H 7 420,000,000 #
JG > A E H W) 2N R AE AR R R
T {H % 25 %8 £ 383,933,000 #k 7T > it
I b F M AL R RERE A

W% W) 20 2N 7 A8 {H 420,000,000 # 6
i HAGE o

W oFE =+ H > — [
JB N ) B — {37 B ST 8 = 05 RIS W
DL 4 4% 18 439,800,000 #k ot 4 & F
Mg E G F— EZH
=+ —H > B ERIE N RE *E%
R BERN S —
FN A+ VH 822w 5E R -

W oFE - =H=+—H> %
Y XmFERBEEEH S
EEFEEMRBEE N F

—THE=ZA=Zt—HMWAREHE
F4 420,000,000 # T o

12 Fixed assets (continued)

(e)

Transfer to investment properties and assets held for sale

During the year ended 31 March 2012, land and buildings held
for own use with carrying value of $36,067,000 were transferred
to investment properties due to change in use from owner
occupation to earning rental from outsiders. At the date of change
in use, the fair value of the property was $420,000,000, the excess
of fair value over the carrying value of the property at that date of
$383,933,000 was recognised in land and buildings revaluation
reserve. The fair value of the property of $420,000,000 was
estimated by the directors.

On 12 March 2012, a subsidiary entered into an agreement with
an independent third party, for disposal of the aforementioned
investment properties at a cash consideration of $439,800,000.
The disposal has not been completed as at 31 March 2012 and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement, the completion
of the sale shall take place on or before 28 June 2012.

As at 31 March 2012, the investment properties were reclassified
from non-current assets to current assets held for sale and carried
at fair value of $420,000,000 as at 31 March 2012.

(f) KEFREYWEZFHEWT : (f)  Details of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:
() FHFEHREYE (i)  Properties held for investment
Term of
b HujM%E MM Location Existing use lease
JUHE 7 3 L 05 B TR M *F G/F, 18 Ng Fong Street, Factories and Medium
1855 T [l San Po Kong, Kowloon shops
4)'1:%‘%‘2& i ] 7l 4 5% b /N F UnitB,C, D, GandHon 7/F, Offices, Medium
He I T3 K 6 7 4 T g & and Car Parking Space factories and
B~C-D:GAH%E B No. 8 on 1/F, warehouses
Fo 1 M8 % 45 HL A3 Wah Shun Industrial Building,
4 Cho Yuen Street, Yau Tong,
Kowloon
JURE 175 f5 28 9% T ' Unit Nos. 2 and 4 on 6/F, and Factories Medium
*Uﬁ{lﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ N Unit Nos. 1 and 2 on 8/F,
QR 4E Je i1 k2E Lee Sum Factory Building,
28 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon
(i) FRfEHLEYE (i) Properties held for sale
RE STTNTT S N Y Y )
H i 1 & (CFJ5 %) HE 2% (%)
Gross floor Group’s
b Location Existinguse  area(sqm) interest (%)
JURE 2L E 111-139 Shop Nos. G29 and G30 on G/F and & 274.99 100
143-161 % 165-181 5 Shop No. 15 on 1/F of Site D, Rental
A RE B ) K HE D R Park Lane Shopper’s Boulevard,
G29 F G30 %t i & Nos. 111-139, 143-161 and
11815 5% il 165-181 Nathan Road,

Kowloon
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12 Fixed assets (continued)

(8) UMEBMEMMNZ I E G E
ALEEUKLBEHEHELBEEY
MW —Br s —2m4E HA
MRBEDNMBORAN ERETA
sk B B E - HIHKEHE

YA G AR E -

DL S 8 FH 6 Fr A7 (5 7 FC At J5 T 24 ¥
AREYRERZIYHE HEHL

AEBMRBEAT MR 2 EEHEAE
H A% M Wi 2 e AR B SRR BN T

(2)

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to two
years, with an option to renew the lease upon expiry at which
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment properties are classified as
investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

2012 2011
$°000 $'000
— 4R Within 1 year 1,569 1,439
—HEZEREN After 1 year but within 5 years 864 97
2,433 1,536
13 f® B & i 13 Intangible assets
7 45
The Group
it et i B A
Licence Trademarks Total
$’000 $’000 $°000
M Cost:
NER—FAENH—H At 1 April 2010,
SE-—E=ZA=Z+—H- 31 March 2011, 1 April 2011
“EFE——ENH—HK and 31 March 2012
ZE-ZHE=ZA=Z+—H 9,364 282,359 291,723
¥ ¥ 0 Accumulated amortisation:
R-F—FFEMH—H At 1 April 2010 4,485 - 4,485
A 5 Charge for the year 780 - 780
WoE—-— 4 =H =+ —H At 31 March 2011 5,265 - 5,265
AT ——4EH—H At 1 April 2011 5,265 - 5,265
A i 1 6 Charge for the year 780 - 780
B E 5 Impairment loss 3,319 - 3,319
o E—TAEZH=+—H At 31 March 2012 9,364 - 9,364
JI 1 A Net book value:
AZE-TAHE=ZA =1 —H At 31 March 2012 - 282,359 282,359
W oE-—F=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2011 4,099 282,359 286,458
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13 1% 98 & %= (80)

(a)

()

(c)

(d)

79 2011/12 Annual Report

i B - —AE (O B2 0 IR 2 Al R
AR 2 IR o AR A B 2
MFtASGZEHE R [T H A

REE-Z-_HF=A=+—H1It
AR R 4R T ST AN MR 2 ] i [m]
B B Bk 15 WE S 15 3,319,000
W0 > DA RZ i IR 2 B (o

[Guy Laroche P % 2 [ Aquascutum |
PR A Bk AR 1 T e PR OB A > 6 AR 4B
& wt EUR B EE S H AR -

i R 9] T A o AR A R 0 e )

[ Aquascutum | /1% & [ Guy Laroche
7% F2 43 7L ME FH 7 T Aquascutum | # Bi
B & [ Guy Laroche | i 4 BR 375
AR A K

13 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The licence is amortised over a period of 12 years being the
estimated useful life of the licence. The amortisation charge for
the year is included in “distribution costs” in the consolidated
income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the license and as a result, an impairment
loss of $3,319,000 was recorded to write-down the carrying
amount of the license.

The Aquascutum and Guy Laroche trademarks are considered
to have indefinite useful lives and are accounted for in accordance
with accounting policy note 1(i).

Impairment tests for trademarks with indefinite useful economic life

The Aquascutum and Guy Laroche trademarks service the
Aquascutum Asia operations and Guy Laroche worldwide
operations, respectively, which are separately identifiable.

2012 2011

$’000 $'000

[ Aquascutum J 7 122 Aquascutum trademark 180,309 180,309
[ Guy Laroche | P 12 Guy Laroche trademark 102,050 102,050
282,359 282,359

[ Aquascutum ] 4% J [ Guy Laroche |
PR AR 2 T A ] < B T 40 R AR (B R
whAA A AR A B R L oE Y A AR BT B
4 U R T o M R AR B B A R
M E s I MR AT AT B R &
EMERL EE v Ik & E
EREMAALAI AT REET > A
o A5 SR T (R A0 L T g e A o

The recoverable amount of the Aquascutum and Guy Laroche
trademarks are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on a five-
year period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated without any growth rate.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount.

F A A M R AR O 2 AR R (d) Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:
[ Aquascutum ] 7 i [ Guy Laroche ] i B2
Aquascutum Guy Laroche
trademark trademark

2012 2011 2012 2011
R & Growth rate 0% 0% 0% 0%
HE R R Gross contribution rate 91% 85% 83% 84%
Pr Bl & Discount rate 9% 10% 9% 10%

BT R PR AR B L HE 4
J& 2 T E R R AR R .
Jir i 2 A B T 5 T 8 A 2
ST 35 B 4 AR o

Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution
rate based on the past performance and its expectations on
market development. The discount rate used is the weighted
average cost of capital of the licensing industry.
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14 L HE R 14 Lease premium
|
The Group
2012 2011
$°000 $'000
A Cost 9,595 9,595
HE 54, 5 B¢ Exchange adjustments 238 855
9,833 10,450

15

A HE 2T A6 — ] O o W) RS 1A
— P Wy 3 2 R T S AT 2 WO - A
Wi 2~ R OR AL T % 3 o A HE SR AR
EMEETT —ME%- Bt HEHE
B O S B A A BRI AT AR AR
T AR AR P A e 1R 8 B

Lease premium represents an amount paid by a subsidiary to obtain
the right to lease a property in France. In the event that the subsidiary
vacates the property, the subsidiary would be entitled to sell the right
to the lease to the next tenant. Accordingly, the lease premium is
considered to have an indefinite useful economic life and is carried at
cost less impairment losses.

W& A w8 % 15 Investments in subsidiaries
AR A
The Company
2012 2011
$’000 $'000
I LAy e AR Unlisted shares, at cost 11,003 11,003
JE Wi Ja 2 R R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,106,522 890,515
1,117,525 901,518
W I (E 1R Less: impairment losses (65,100) (65,100)
1,052,425 836,418

B T — FE Y B RS A R 2 BIE (DR B R
04 (=& — —4:05H) 5t B) &
225,795,000 JT ( = % — —4F : 214,757,000
JL) 2 A s Bk RE i K A B RS 4 Dk IE
Th dE A B G M [ GE R B o HE K
e FEAH B s\l 2 s ETE M N A B A —
RS g fE -

HE - F——F=ZHA=Z+—HILEERK -
Hrp e (E 5 18 8% 1] 48,200,000 7T & 1E M
Wiz BT B 2 ) EROIE A 4 ) RO R -

T B 2 F 2 EORERE I R 114
HEH5H -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment except for an amount due from a
subsidiary of $225,795,000 (2011: $214,757,000) which is interest
bearing at 0.4% (2011: 0.5%) per annum. The amounts due from
subsidiaries are not expected to be settled within one year from the
balance sheet date.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, a reversal of impairment loss
of $48,200,000 was recognised in order to write back amounts due
from subsidiaries to their recoverable amount.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 114 to 115.
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16 B B 2 u) BE 2%

16 Interest in associate

A4 M 7% 2 )
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $000 $'000
LTS N AE Listed shares, at cost - - - 12,595
JRE Ak & E I (E Share of net assets - 180,593 - -
- 180,593 - 12,595
(@ R_F——F=ZA=+—H &K (a) Asat31March 2011, the market value of the Company’s interest

()

(c)

(d)

8 1 2011/12 Annual Report

AL b b TR g 0 e 2 2
7 {5 £ 329,968,000 7€ M 4% /A @ B
W F— A H b B TR
28 FT AR B R

A E =A==+ —HILEE
A A B — 5 i e B N R B B AR
B A RS ) (BB eI ) 192.12%
HE 25 > 1818 % 40,483,000 7T °

W oE - —H T NH A4
BB A U N WD R R R T A
HEZE - B4 AUME £600,485,0007C o [
BRI ESELN _F——F—H
St HMREER LGS EHER
i E S E Oz ME R 2R 0 R PR
IS e R AR R o B U A AR
1 5k 6 1 R 35 £ £ 30,024,000 T (Fff
FE S22 0H) K B2 ] 9,448,000 TG
1% H 321,169,000 7t > i #H & — &
—THEZA=Z+—-HILEENES

(b)

(c)

in the ordinary shares of the above associate was $329,968,000.
The associate was delisted from the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 February 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group acquired a
further 2.12% interest in associate, Hang Ten Group Holdings
Limited (‘HTGH?), at a consideration of $40,483,000.

On 26 January 2012, the Group disposed of all its interest in
associate, HTGH, for cash consideration of $600,485,000. The
results of HTGH were equity accounted for up to that date based
on the unaudited consolidated management account as at 31
January 2012, which was prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
Profit on disposal of $321,169,000, net of indemnity liabilities of
$30,024,000 (note 22) and professional fees of $9,448,000, was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

B RHERAMR -
W& 4wl 1 B O R REEE (d) Summary financial information on associate:
¥ A 11 1% Hi %% WA it A
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
—EF oA 2011
100% 100 percent 1,409,430  (521,367) 888,063 2,363,515 239,133
AEEZHBEHEL  Group's effective interest 288,651  (108,058) 180,593 484,048 49,128




securities
Ik b Unlisted
W 8 N ) AR R B M ST Loan to associate and accrued
LB, (B 5F 55 31(d) ) interest (note 31(d))
JRE Wi £ 2K Loan receivable
A F Analysed as follows:
IF Wi B A E Non-current assets
i B Current assets
(a) W& N R 2 AR ER A AR LU R

()

LT ARE 2 Listed equity securities
iR/ (=R ) at fair value
—REE - in Hong Kong

A = 20 00 608 i 27

HOMFE Wk —F——F+—H
JUR -

BEARBERR - %F - —HF=A
=+—H 2 R fEE 32,209,000 7T ©
2 SRS DLR AR BL & R 2 B
e [A) J e f TR 2 BUAT TG A R A
BARMH -

JRE Wi B K B A HE A 0 DLAE R R 3E A
1A S ER AT [F) SE 3R ORI S 2 S 5
Wik —F——FIJLH L HAHEE- It
JE Wi £ 5K DA T Aquascutum ) 7 2 & 7
2T G ST R KA o

MEWCRE R —F — — 4= =+ —
H 2 7 fof8 {8 £ 37,649,000 7C 24 f
A TS DR AR B & i 2 BL(E 1% [F]
FH& Wl TR 2 BUAT T R R BLAR
i3 o

18 fE &8 2t &

Held-to-maturity debt

(a)

(b)

72,209 33,834
The loan to associate was unsecured, interest bearing at 6% per
annum and was fully repaid on 9 November 2011.

The fair value of the loan to associate at 31 March 2011 of
$32,209,000 was estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

The loan receivable was interest-bearing at 2% plus 3-month
LIBOR and was fully repaid on 7 September 2011. The loan
receivable was secured by certain fixed assets and intangible
assets of the vendor of Aquascutum trademark.

The fair value of the loan receivable at 31 March 2011 of
$37,649,000 was estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

18 Trading securities

1,613




Raw materials

14,224

e Work in progress 5,534
LIy Finished goods 130,730
150,488

(b) T4 B LW O At A A 4 K 097 B
L&

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

and included in profit or loss is as follows:

CEMABZIREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 372,252
17 B Write down of inventories 9,636
A B R A% [ Reversal of write-down of inventories (2,450)

379,438
PRGNS R JTDER NN | The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years arose
Z WU 51 B Y TE AR B due to an increase in the estimated realisable value of certain garments
e e as a result of a change in consumer preferences.

20 K e e sk B I filb HE e sk

R WA B S % R i S Trade debtors and bills
receivable
T BE R A A
(It 5% 55 20(0) TH)

e~ AT K

Less: Allowance for doubtful
debts (note 20(b))

Deposits, prepayments and

20 Trade and other receivables

Al 8 i 3K other receivables 69
e Wi B 2 ) 3K IR Amounts due from related

companies _

o iy 5 5 Club memberships 750

819

A A ) Je AR s\ T R R B At R
WK (B 4% 4~ TEAST B~ At BB e 3k B &
BT G > A SR KRN B BB B
19,699,000t ( =& ——4 : 21,524,0007T)
} 750,000 7t (= F — — 4 : 750,000 JG) >
TE A AT — A 9 i e B R R A e

2011/12 Annual Report

All of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables,
apart from deposits, prepayments and other receivables and club
memberships amounting to a total of $19,699,000 (2011: $21,524,000)
and $750,000 (2011: $750,000) respectively, are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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20 ME W MRk K I b BE B AR (s0)
(a) JE 8557

()

R W B i B A K 4 R A R
AR L AR (T 41 B R R Bl (e s
) HEEAER B ZRE2WT

20 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and bills

receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the following
ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

A HE
The Group

2012 2011

$°000 $'000

o i 1) Current 53,310 60,897

i B8 0 i —fE H Less than 1 month past due 22,242 11,229

i — = =8 A 1 to 3 months past due 1,216 6,697
70 KA 8 R =W H More than 3 months but less than

B+ A 12 months past due 3,845 5,142

i 1 B Amounts past due 27,303 23,068

80,613 83,965

A AR B fE B O 20— 8 AR RO
B 5E: 575 28(a) HH o

JE IR sk e HE W 5 9 2 e

A7 TR S SR A T SR R 2 (S
BT MR T LR 8% - BRJE A 4
FAAF W [e] 5% 3K TH 2 W] Rk A A - S L
T UL - B(E e 1H B I SOHR R &
JRESCER AR Fh M (2 B R 281 () )

A R A 2 5 I (L A R
B8 R ) T

(b)

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly (see note 1(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is
as follows:

L]
The Group

2012 2011

$°000 $°000
A H) At the beginning of the year 13,376 12,227
T i, 3% %% Exchange adjustments (442) 494
il 58 ok (e s 48 (B 5E %5 5(0) ) Impairment loss recognised (note 5(c)) 2,920 1,081
Ui s 145 ) (B G5 5(c) ) Reversal of impairment loss (note 5(c)) (3,716) (426)
B AS AT Wi 7] 2 4 R Uncollectible amounts written off (26) -
i AF 7 At the end of the year 12,112 13,376

W oE—TAHEZHA=Z+—H KE
9] R i B B R M i B BB 4% 9,384,000
It (& — — 4 1 11,240,000 7T) i &
2 A8 Ak AE - 5% 45 AW A Bl A E 2
BBl xS HRE &P
BE > 98 R R AR o TR AR AT i ]
AWK — e FIL > EERR
2 R R BRI £ 8,773,000 T (—F
— — 4 1 8,045,000 L) ° A% 4E [ 3f 4
B ol S e IR T

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s trade debtors and bills receivable
of $9,384,000 (2011: $11,240,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts
of $8,773,000 (2011: $8,945,000) were recognised.

2011/12 4 #
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20 ME W MRk B A RE WA (s0) 20 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) N JE J5 1 Z JE W HR 2k Je HE W 5% (¢) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired
A 4% AR 731 2k 4 B Bl A 2 e (E 2 IR The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are
WA M B SR 2 BRE ATl - neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:
AL H
The Group
2012 2011
$°000 $000
oA 78 1 5 Neither past due nor impaired 53,310 60,897
i 510 s — A8 A Less than 1 month past due 21,675 9,574
i = A 1 to 3 months past due 1,216 6,057
7 HA A — A A More than 3 months but
B+ @A less than 12 months past due 3,801 5,142
26,692 20,773
80,002 81,670
E 48 280 19 5 6k (2 ME i 3k B AR £ 3l Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
WM R ATR B ZE P A H - wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
O A 00 H 0 ok 18 2 M ik B 2 2 Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
TEFAER ZEEFEFHEALERZ number of independent customers that have a good track record
FERHRT - REREZLE, Gk with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
RN N3 I E N S that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
A7 4 AL BRI 2 S 1] - W BRE AR balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
15 U ZEU0E b 5 &5 BR AR o (8 B o quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
A% AR T I Ak 0 AR A B R R AT AT 4K
G
21 BERBESHD 21 Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Bl RBELFHYBE - (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
A4 P /|
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
SRAT S oAt B4 FS Deposits with banks and
W 2 17 3K other financial institutions 781,522 54,585 711,733 -
SRAT A7 A Bl & Cash at bank and in hand 303,731 372,334 85,696 163,394
HEEAMKTRZ Cash and cash equivalents in
Bla M B S E Y the balance sheets 1,085,253 426,919 797,429 163,394
AT 75 3 (M 5128 23(a) TH) Bank overdrafts (note 23(a) (5,698) (3,818)
ARG BLA R R IR Cash and cash equivalents in
2B E BB a the consolidated cash flow
(87 statement 1,079,555 423,101

8 5 2011/12 Annual Report




e
B %5 3 R W st

Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 3 4 Br 5 4F > 2 Lt o 91 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 Bl & RBE&EE5EY @) 21 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
(b) A% B Bl BT s I G B 2y 45 5 SE B 2 B (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from
EHmA operations:
Wt 5 2012 2011
Note $’000 $’000
¥ i 11T i ) Profit before taxation 326,107
FIRIEHE - Adjustments for:
SRATF B WA Bank interest income 4 (422)
Bt > ) AR R A Interest income from associate 4 (1,907)
Ho Al R E A Other interest income 4 (1,184)
TR R 2 B A Dividend income from listed securities 4 (16)
[ E R R R A Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 4 220
e BT e AR 2 kAR T AR Net realised gain on disposal of
club memberships 4 =
LEFEER GRS HZ Net realised gain on disposal of
C 5 B i 7 1 A trading securities 4 (13)
FHEMBRZEFEAZ Net unrealised loss on trading
I 58 B e 1E R AR securities 4 739
il & R A Finance costs 5(a) 870
ERESS B 2 S Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses 5(b) 582
T E = 4 S Amortisation of intangible assets 5(c) 780
T & A VA e 18 Impairment loss on intangible assets 5(c) -
e Depreciation 12(a) 21,488
FfEA R 2 ME Amortisation of interest in leasehold
HE 35 1 51 land held for own use 12(a) 162
@< g7/E RN EREE | Net valuation gains on investment
properties (20,000)
A 6 45 N ] g A I8 s 1R Share of profits less losses of associate (49,128)
R T A A i R T A Net gain on disposal of associate 16(c) -
ME 5 (W 35) 5 18 Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 3,585
e Changes in working capital:
A7 5 1 m Increase in inventories (48,481)
JE i B K % i Decrease/(increase) in trade debtors and
ERW Y (3 m) bills receivable (3,454)
e~ THAT R H AL UK Increase in deposits, prepayments and
BT other receivables (14,857)
JE Wi R 2 N ] R Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
W (3 ) related companies (1,291)
JEASH B R (W) (Decrease)/increase in trade creditors 17,600
JE A 224 (b)) 1 (Decrease)/increase in bills payable 2,752
Al 8 ASE R % E Increase in other payables and
Rl accrued charges 21,348
JRE AT B 8 T R Increase in amounts due to
Hm related companies 927
HWEEHEEZHE Cash generated from operations 256,407

2011/12 4 #

86



2011/12 Annual Report

JE AT 5 4% Bills payable
JiE A B 2K Trade creditors

7,958
53,249

7,927

61,207 7,927
Al R A R % A Other payables and accrued
#H charges 145,792 5,823
515 PR 7 A Indemnity liabilities
(Bt 53 55 16(c) 1) (note 16(c)) -
JEE A5F BAY J 2> =] Kk IH Amounts due to subsidiaries 52,366
JiE ) IR 2 2\ F) 3K IR Amounts due to related
companies 4,116 455
66,571

Jv A B A R i B HL A A5 TR R —
N -

5 PR BRUHE S o2 K H U R A 18 R
AEmE - = —-=FtH] = +XH>
ISR T AR B AR e R R
7 AR B £ 4 PR o

JRE ASF B JB§ 2% ] K JEL TG e 4K S B R %0
R B 7 o

R ASF R Bk B B AR S 4 A A G H 2 IR
SrHr AR

211,115

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year.

The indemnity liabilities represented a contractual indemnity provided
to the acquirer of HTGH if certain events occur with an expiry date at
eighteen months from the completion date i.e. 26 July 2013.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable as of the balance
sheet date are:

— B 7 A Bk Due within 1 month or

4 51 IR 5] 1 on demand 7,927
— i A #&1H Due after 1 month but within

=D NNE:R ] 3 months -
=fE AR Due after 3 months but within

Ay i ISR 6 months -
Y DR X (E! Due after 6 months but within

T =8 A N E 12 months -
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23 AT AR E X

23 Bank loans and overdrafts

(a) FEAC 7 B9 $RAT B 5k K 5 37 0 HR 1T 1 (a) The analysis of the carrying amount of unsecured bank loans and
S WE overdrafts is as follows:
A LM
The Group

2012 2011

$°000 $000
SRAT 5 2 (K 555 21(a) 1) Bank overdrafts (note 21(a)) 5,698 3,818
AT F K Bank loans = 31,718

5,698 35,536

%R _F—— =R
= b B A S T A GRS
S B R 34 0B O <

WoE—-—HE£=H=+—H, #1T
£ 330,072,000 0 N B A B &4
R A B B I o B0 3 — JE R Kk Tfi
i 45 B 3K Th ok A 00 AT AT L A Ak 3R
KB > SRATHEA MR D B
S Bl R A R K -

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group’s banking facilities
were not subject to the fulfilment of any financial covenants.

At 31 March 2011, bank loans of $30,072,000 were classified as
current as the relevant loan agreements include a clause whereby
the bank has an unconditional right to demand loan repayment
at any time notwithstanding any other terms and maturity as set
out in the loan agreements.

b) R-IF—-FE=ZH=+—HHRTH (b) At 31 March 2012, the original maturity of bank loans and overdrafts
KRB MBI A WF was as follows:
AR
The Group
2012 2011
$°000 $000
— A A B 3 48 Within 1 year or on demand 5,698 12,982
— R AW AE N After 1 year but within 2 years - 7,518
A 4% (H T4 N After 2 year but within 5 years - 15,036
e
5,698 35,536
24 & H B H A 24 Employee retirement benefits

7 A5 ] TG 4 IR G e A R e R B
By 2 B - K AR 5 A s COR 13 6% 9 1
AR TmAEAEEFF(RES
FHE)) o AR &R # T — A E L EOR
Ret® > B 2 NATEH - BT
M EF# RBRELREESHEHLERES
B A Z5%m et EIE Btk A A
B A 2 bR £ 20,000 0C © [ 7% w5t #4E
2 itk Ty B IR B JE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

2011/12 4 #
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24

25
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e BB K H A (s

TE A B S ik B 88 A RE i ST 2 B JE 4 A
20 A B R R 2 B R b B R ik AR
B A 8 2 e OB AR R B o % S i K
JA S AT RS A 18 2R R ATER o

— T a8 L7 2 W 4 R A 2 (2%
B3 i ) 5 B — SR 5 4RI A a8 o
1 % 0 th 2 R B T
G 2 2% ST o Bt B A 5 I R
ERZEB WRARFBONMAY
994 2 (% i O 1) 25 19 8K T 1 5 4 1
B -

Jbe M & R B

ARRFR ZFFZNEILA = HERM
W RE R SR> A ] SR M
AR R E AR AR R R B A
B AL T~ 7l 2 # A DL A
e AR LA G B A O W) 22 B A o 5% S N L B
B H 1R 4 230 K B - i H AR 4R
WAL T AT o A TE AR KRR AN A
HE R A % ) — Ml A e B DA e 3 S AT o

(a) 2T IR HEZ sk Rt 1F 2 °F -

24

25

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Subsidiaries established in the PRC or incorporated in France
participate in the defined contribution retirement schemes operated
by the local authorities for employees in the PRC and France,
respectively. Contributions to these schemes are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local Labour
Standards Law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of wages
and salaries paid. The scheme is not material to the Group and,
therefore, the disclosures required by HKAS 19, Employee benefits,
issued by the HKICPA have not been presented.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options at nil consideration
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The options vest after 4 to 30
days from the date of grant and are then exercisable within a period
of ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

Jik DB i Jik )z i
5 )8 A gk ¥H
Vesting  Contractual life Number
conditions of options of options
fiE IR A R LA Options granted on
—H+tA: 17 January 2005:
- BFER — to directors i H 30 H 14 3,150,000
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
- TR - to employees i HIE30H T4 538,000
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
7 i 1t A Total share options granted 3,688,000




Wi B i 3R B R

Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 3 4 Br 5 4F > 2 Lt o 91 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

25 M HE S R B (8D
(b) IR S I % I £ A5 A A

25 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options

are as follows:

2012 2011
T i - 2 kB HE Ty i 15 HE
A7 4 £ ¥H 718 #H
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
$ ’000 $ ’000
A ARAT 5 2 W i HE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year 12.10 3,688 12.10 11,627
AR T 2 W IR Granted during the year - - 13.78 500
A B B Rk 2 B i e Lapsed during the year - - 12.10 (60)
A AT 00 2 Exercised during the year 12.10 (2,568) 12.20 (8,379)
AR ARAT A 2 B e e Outstanding at the end
of the year 12.10 1,120 12.10 3,688
AR AT AT 2 B I Exercisable at the end
of the year 12.10 1,120 12.10 3,688

6 = — R AT 2 R 2

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share

(c)

fifi B 2 Jin fE T 3 4 18 £ 20,7000 (=
F——4F 1 18.367C) °

W oE—-"F=ZA=+—HILFE
AL B O OB ME( R — — 4
500,000 1/ 1 % HE 4% ) o

R oFE - EZH =+ BRI
JBCRE 2 i RE ST ¥ 47 (4 8 2121000 (Z
F——4E 1 121070) T R AR A
KPR F52.884F (& ——4F : 3.884F) »

Wi IR 2 4 Ao A R AR

A G5 T LA A HE R S 2 R S
ZARME 12 FE ORI EREZ
N E R e T B 2 fh R
2% FofE DL 2E SR, R SR A o
FeHE 2 & %) 4 M AR e i X 2 — A
MAZY - ARERTHEZENC
A A ZIHSUBE R 2 A e

(c)

options in 2012 was $20.70 (2011: $18.36).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no share options (2011:
500,000 share options) were granted.

The options outstanding at 31 March 2012 had a weighted
average exercise price of $12.10 (2011: $12.10) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.88 years (2011: 3.88 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted was measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted was measured based on a binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the share option was used as an input into this
model. Expectations of early exercise were incorporated into the
binomial lattice model.

ik Bt HE 2 2 A 4 B Btk Fair value of share options and assumptions 2011
BEFEHBZ A RE Fair value at measurement date 14 October 2010
B & Share price $13.78
AT 10 1 Exercise price $13.78
TE DI M (S £ 30 R 2 T DA Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average

2R K A D volatility used in the modelling under binomial

lattice model) 28%

IR HE 2 6 A0 (T 35 s Option life (expressed as weighted average life used in

2 DA Z 0 o A T 5 the modelling under binomial lattice model) 4.33 years
TE B R Expected dividends 8.5%
A8 B ) 2 (R A A BE B 4 8 ) Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.14%

2011/12 % #
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25 B BEA R B () 25 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)
(c) JEIRBEZ L 7oA TR % (FH) (¢c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)
TE 1) I 18 4% R 5 U I 2 IR 9 i R The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
R A A AERREE) o IR (calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
7y BR O R R AR R 2 AT o] TE share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
AL T DA R o TH I B B R AR volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
BEE- TRAFBEEZ 2 dividends were based on historical dividends. Changes in the
HARMBEZMAFIEAEREE- subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
Wi JB 2 AR 5 M 5 Ak 4 T AR o b Share options were granted under a service conditions. The
TG A AE 5T 2 BT 15 IR B < A Aol Ot condition had not been taken into account in the grant date fair
B W RE B R R TE % I8 2 1 - % value measurement of the services received. There were no market
Hh I M N7 A A T 4 A o conditions associated with the share option grants.
26 EREAMERZ A B 26 Income tax in the balance sheets
(a) HE B 1 FE PR Z K P13 FE 7 - (a) Current taxation in the balance sheets represents:
7% 4 VN
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $'000
A A TE W AR BLMEMS  Provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year 38,141 21,795 B85 371
O A 4800R) 75 B Provisional Profits Tax paid (24,179) (11,050) (422 (759)
13,962 10,745 (87) (388)
DU 4 B 22 R4S B Balance of Profits Tax provision
E {5 relating to prior years 992 3,554 - -
7 LA R B IHYE M Provision for tax outside
Hong Kong 18,629 14,527 - -
AW E AT GRIED) Current tax payable/
i 15 (recoverable) 33,583 28,826 (87) (388)
B F Analysed as follows:
A A AR [A] A TE Current tax recoverable (5,832 (848) (87) (388)
A 1A B TH Current tax payable 39,415 29,674 - -
33,583 28,826 87) (388)
(b)) B THE 8 0% Ak Bt JH & A A A - (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
() A%H ()  The Group
CREGEAEEABRMER & The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
HE B IH ( fé ) B KA in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during
FEEEMT the year are as follows:

9 1 2011/12 Annual Report




() BB EMA M ()
A 45 [ (48)

M

(i)

BEBEKA :

REF-FENA—H At 1 Apri 2010 (restated)
(E4)

500 % Exchange adjustments

Deferred tax arising from:

ERERIIL/ GEA)
(S 30 (W 5E 5% 6(a) )

Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss (restated)
(note 6(a))

HELC ¥ 2 Effect on change in tax rates
(Bt 5 % 6e) JR) (note 6(a))

REF-—E=A=1—H At31 March2011 (restated)
(EH)

REF——4FMA—H (EH) A1 Aprl 2011 (estated)

[ 36, 79 4 Exchange adjustments

fEEHEGIA) /A% (Credited)/charged to
(% 4 6(a) 8) profit or loss (note 6(a))

HESC a2 Effect on change in tax rates

(% % 6(a) B) (note B(a))
BoE—"HEZA=+—H At31March2012

A F

O A & E A KRR 2 R S B

THA B KAFEZBH T

EIEBLIAAR A
B EE-FAENA A
LR CE TN

RoF——E=ZA= 0

B F——4FENA—H
TE 18 4t % 51 52

WoFE - =A=+—H

U]

The Group (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued) -

(3279 9,018 (9,882) (39,283) (43,426)
19 - (606) (1372) (1,959)
871 - (6,779 9,350 4,442
- - 650 - 650
(2,389) 9,018 (15,617) (31,309) (40,293
(2,389) 9,018 (15,617) (81,309) (40,293)
©) - (252) 1,376 1,118
(1,167) (4,538 (4,628) 8,603 (1,730)
(47) - - - (47)
(3,609) 4,480 (20,497) (21,326) (40,952
(i) The Company

The deferred tax liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

and the movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:
At 1 April 2010
Credited to profit or loss

At 31 March 2011

At 1 April 2011
Charged to profit or loss

At 31 March 2012
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26 HEAE R Z P &8 (8)
(b) B i3 2B AT B JE B A4 65 ¢ (AF)

(i) WAE 2 EEAEER

26 Income tax in the balance sheets (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

(iiiy  Reconciliation to the balance sheets

AEM b /AT
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
$°000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(FE ) (E )
(restated)  (restated)
TEEEAMENMRLZ  Net deferred tax asset
I A0 o T N (L recognised in the
balance sheet (45,223) (48,810)  (51,589) - -
FEEABERANMRZ  Net deferred tax
i 4 B IH A A E liability recognised
in the balance sheet 4,271 8,517 8,157 62 60
(40,952)  (40,299) (43,426) 62 60

(¢) KR Z M FLIE G E

(d)
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IR BE B 5E1(r) 2 & RTECSR - AN 4R R
M R 5B K 1H 22,136,000 00 (&
— —4F 1 21,502,000 G ) fifE 78 £ 1% 4E
BTE & B > R AE A BE BB B R I )
FERION TR W NS NIT LR )
BLAE -

N _FE - EFE=ZH=+—H A%

VA Tl R B s 1R A IR SE B IR R E
HE i H T

(¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $22,136,000 (2011: $21,502,000) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

At 31 March 2012, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses, whose expiry dates are:

A HE
The Group

2012 2011

$°000 $'000

- —U4E+ 7 H In December 2014 = 728
TE-E—HET A In December 2015 1,672 1,740
E_F—RFE+_H In December 2016 142 137
EBRITBBER T AFEM Do not expire under current tax legislation 20,322 18,897
22,136 21,502

R #R 2 AT AT Bl IE A

AN B " =ZH=1+—H> AN
B 2 B S TR R B R 2
K¢ 1 2% %8 % 13,357,000 76 (& — —
4 18,267,000 70) o B A 48 ) il
W% W A w2 BB > T a% M E
YNNI NS = TN 3 S TR = 2N
TR 5 s R > EOP ok RE R AT AE (K 4
TR 5% 45 % B8 s R Br E AR B TE T W K&
2 % 3L B TH £ K £ 668,000 00 (&
— —4E 1 413,0007C) °

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2012, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries based in the PRC amounted
to $13,357,000 (2011: $8,267,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
$668,000 (2011: $413,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable
that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends

A AR B 2 AR A R AR P IR 1Y 4R A
B AR AR B f 6 M i B ) 2R R K
AN F) 224 il HE 2 B 40 B 4F D AR

(@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the

IR B ) FE G A AN changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
V, | The Company
B A
Wik Bk Bebyuesl  BIWGH BARRE  RERA B
Capital
Share Share redemption Capital  Retained
Note capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
REZ-RENA—H Balance at 1 April 2010 76916 133,383 4646 22323 491000 728,358
g : Changes in equity:
R T i 44 Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - W39 253,797
i B HE 2K 2 Lapse of share options - - - (115) 115 -
G LYY Equity-settled share-based
transactions - - - 582 - 582
TR BT AT R Shares issued under share
option scheme 27(0)(i 4189 113632 - (15710 - 102111
BEEEEHERE Dividends approved and paid in
respect of the previous year 27(b)iil - - - - (61,533)  (61,539)
REFECHERKE Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 27(0)0) - - - - (40,501)  (40,501)
REZ——£=Z=+—H  Balanceat3! March 2011
kZ%F—-—FNj—H and 1 April 2011 81,106 247,015 4,646 7080 642968 982,814
WaEE: Changes in equity:
A2 T4 A5 Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 181174 781174
TERERE T BT AT R Shares isstied under share
option scheme 27(c)(i) 1,284 34,673 - (4.931) - 31,026
BEFECHERE Dividends approved and paid in
respect of the previous year 27(b)i) - - - - (123303 (123303
AEEEERES Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 27(0)i) - - - - (49321) (49,321
REZZ—-ZH=H=+—H  Balanceat31 March 2012 82,380 281,688 4,646 2,149 1251518 1,622,390
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e 3% 2

EERE LA FERE
58 M I 30 H L
(ZF——4F 25k Al

(b) Dividends

U)

Interim dividend declared and paid of
30 cents (2011: 25 cents) per ordinary share

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

40,501
T B 2 IR LIRS 548 Special dividend proposed after the balance sheet
BB e 4V o0 (Z % ——4F < fIE) date of $4 (2011: nil) per ordinary share -
ISR 3 VRN Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet
i 5% 4 Fit 5 1 80 ¥ il date of 80 cents (2011: 75 cents)
(& ——4: BR75EN) per ordinary share 123,303
163,804
RESE H AR ER IR 2 A K The special and final dividend proposed after the balance
SN @SN N o o WS sheet date has not been recognised as a liability at the

Wk AR

(i) kB AR BE R A AR 2 R
i JIe SRR AG B (2 08 4F 1 2 it
e L2 IR 1)

R B A 2 o M S
5 [ 75 Al (27 4F i R4 o
RRA) (ZF——4F

40 AL

(c) MK
)y g KB BITRA

W A Authorised:

(i)

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year, of 75 cents (2011: 40 cents)
per ordinary share

U

T BT (E0.50 7T @ Ordinary shares of $0.50 each

T B B R A Ordinary shares, issued and
- fully paid:

R AAER) At the beginning of the year

1 8 ICRE ST 81 T Shares issued under the
AT AR share option scheme

WAL At the end of the year

95 pum—

balance sheet date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year

61,533

(¢) Share capital
Authorised and issued share capital

200,000 100,000
163,832 76,916

8,379 4,189
162,211 81,106
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i i B Bt B (&)

(c) WA (#F)

M

(i)

(i)

5 R BB AT A ()

W B R A N HE A R
RS > BERHA - BEA
—RERRNFE G L R
Fir A A i 4 3 A 4 R B
FE A [F] S e AR o

T % Jbe R B T B AT AR

AR —-THEZH =+ —H 1k
FEEN > A F A 2,568,000 (Z
F— —4F 1 8,379,000 %) M HE 14
AT - 58 B 4548 /5 31,026,000
g (= & — — 4 :102,111,000
gt ) - H 411,284,000 0 ( = &
——4F 1 4,189,0007T) #FAJEA
1 %129,742,0007C (ZF ——4 :
97,922,00070) 71 A B 03l 18 B o
MR 5 Bt 53 465 1 (q) (if) Y8 B # 2 & 51
BUK > 4,931,00000 (& ——4 :
15,710,000 7C) 1 B A i 5 4 &
B % 53 vk A8 B -

&S H R B RORAT 2
e HE 2 A6k 3k

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

U

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2012, options were
exercised to subscribe for 2,568,000 (2011: 8,379,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of
$31,026,000 (2011: $102,111,000) of which $1,284,000
(2011: $4,189,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of $29,742,000 (2011: $97,922,000) was credited
to the share premium account. $4,931,000 (2011:
$15,710,000) has been transferred from the capital reserve
to the share premium account in accordance with policy set
out in note 1(q)(ii).

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
balance sheet date

A7 1 1 2012 2011
Exercise price H #H
$ Number Number
A5 158 39 1 Exercise period
CEEREHTANBE 16 February 2005 to
ZE-HTHEZHA+THA 15 February 2015 121 1,120,000 3,688,000

IR A N AR
W 7w — B B e 5% AR I
I HE 2 o 2 B R B S R R
B 5E 55 2514 o

(d) fif fig Z P B K &

M

(i)

e 4 Yk i B PR A JE [k 4§

B 4 i 8 M B B A T Tl ik A ZH
0 Hll AR A s (8 R A 1) 26 48B
o B2 55 49H Tk 78 ) -

B A ik

e A fif 45 6 415 AR 482 IR 281 (a) (i)
TE T SR R AT PR AR 2 gt
BORMER O T AL EESRN
R B 2 B S aF R AT B2 I
Ji HE B R S A fEAE -

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
the directors and employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(q)(ii).
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 1(u).

(iv) Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set up
and will be dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for the revaluation of land and buildings held
for own use (note 1(h)).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance was $1,251,518,000 (201 1: $642,968,000).
After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a special
dividend and a final dividend of $4 (2011: nil) and 80 cents (2011:
75 cents) per ordinary share, amounting to $663,455,000 (2011:
nil) and $132,691,000 (2011: $123,303,000), respectively. Both
the special and final dividends have not been recognised as
liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose, the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

#

Capital management (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from 2011, was to maintain a relatively
low net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2012 and 2011
was as follows:

R
A Y /AT
The Group The Company
it 2k 2012 2011 2012 2011
Note $'000 $000 $°000 $'000
(E#H) (EH#H)
(restated) (restated)
MEAE: Current liabilities
— AT B A L At R A5 - Trade and other payables 22 227,218 211,115 | 232,823 66,571
— AT B A - Bank loans and overdrafts 23 5,698 35,536 - -
BB BH Total debt 232,916 246,651 232,823 66,571
s R S Add: Proposed dividends 27(0)) | 132,691 123303 | 132,691 123,303
W Bl e LB EEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents 21(a) | (1,085,258) (426,919) | (797,429)  (163,394)
16 8 5 Net debt N/A N/A N/A N/A
T 45 A0 Total equity 2,122,135 1,252,385 @ 1,622,390 982,814
W R AR Less: Proposed dividends 27(0)) | (182,691) (123,303) | (182,691)  (123,303)
S B3 @ Adjusted capital 1,989,444 1129082 @ 1,489,699 859,511
5 A e Net debt-to-adjusted
HARLE capital ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A

A m) B HAT AT WY 2 /] A 32 A
VRt N 2 AR B E R

M oFE R FE - —FE =N
=t—HR -BHEeEkHeFHEYHER
RS SR R BE IR IS Y K8 - PR
fEHS R RS B A L R 2R o

28 4 ik L BE A B R A R B

AL B e TR IR W B M R R B B
U B M A0 B o AR 4R B R
PR A B 2 A B A K AR B
IS {5 iz 38l T T e A I g

A AR W KA B R B o i A SR O R DU
B LR S G A B A B LB o

28

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, cash and cash equivalents were
in excess of the aggregate of total debt and proposed dividends.
Therefore, net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio is not presented.

Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities
and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.
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(continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, listed equity securities, debt investments and deposits
with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

Investments in equity securities are normally only in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long term strategic purposes.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and placement of bank
deposits are normally with counterparties that have sound credit
ratings. Therefore, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk only arise if the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance. Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 30(a), the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed
in note 30(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 20.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following shows the remaining contractual maturities at the
balance sheet date of the Group’s non-derivative and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted

EACORARC RS ORIIE i A DN
A 2 TE S B R AR R 2 R
HGEA) DL S AR 4R B S A 24 ) AT A
bk 2 B BRI RS

cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

AREH The Group
CEPSE L
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—~4 W —~AEB M CES 3 SAE+-H
CE3 b CER Sk Hm W%
More than More than I i
Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but Carrying amount at
or on demand less than 2 years less than 5 years Total 31 March
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 §000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000
FIEX Bank overdrafts 5,698 3,818 - - - - 5,698 3818 5,698 3,818
REEHR Bank loans - 9344 - T4 - 15347 - 32365 - 31718
I i Bk Trade credftors 20000 53249 - - - - | 29000 53249 | 29009 53249
LANES Bils payable 3035 7958 - - - - | 3085 798| 8085 798
HARER Other payables and
RIEFER  accrued charges 160,762 145,683 150 109 - - | 160912 145792 | 160912 145792
BEREAR  Indemniy liabiities 30,024 - - - - - 30,024 - 30,024 -
M B Amounts due to
K related companies 4238 4116 - - - - | 4288 4116 | 4288 4116
232,766 224,168 150 7,783 - 15347 | 282916 247298 | 232916 246,651
2011/12 % #
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

A2 ) The Company
KARIMITA /M ARBHR —FN All the Company’s financial liabilities are required to be settled
8 A B8 70 i ORI R o Y E AR within one year or are repayable on demand. The total contractual

x> A EMAENS A RME
< B4 A A H AR A

ey N

AR 2 ) R Ja By AR R A
e T A M) A R[] E AR R 2 R
{7 45 1 0 1l 7K 32 3 4 i A R
B B 2% o B (B A 5 L By o A SR B B
2 FL I 72 I R K T A M) R K
WERGFEMBEEERARZ AN
WA PR o 4 B RE B 4% 2 A 4R R R
DL F R

() AN

TRAINALEHZEEREGR
H Z I A DL -

(c)

undiscounted cash outflow of these financial liabilities equal their
carrying amounts in the balance sheet.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors the level of its
fixed rate and variable rate borrowings and manages the
contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial assets and
liabilities. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out below:

(i)  Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date.

¥ Y|
The Group
2012 2011
H A E% WE EBAME% M
Effective Effective
interest rate Total interest rate Total
% $°000 % $000
) ﬁ; B Variable rate borrowings:
) ﬁ? iE % Bank overdrafts 1.59 5,698 2.00 3,818
AT H K Bank loans - - 2.07 30,072
5,698 33,890
7] ? A R Fixed rate borrowings:
AT H K Bank loans - - 4.60 1,646
15 £% 44 Total borrowings 5,698 35,536
s AR A B Net fixed rate borrowings
A% A £ L K as a percentage of total
net borrowings N/A 4.6%
(i) HUREE AT (i) Sensitivity analysis

o E - CHEZA=Z+—H
18 5% Jr At 55 AR B R 52
Fl BB TR B 1001 3 B
fl w1 € 8 BUA 4R B 2 R BLAR B
VI e i S I A Ry | <
38,000 7 (= & — —4E : 242,000
JB) o & A HE fE 2 HoAl IR 0 % R
R R TN BT %
R

At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $38,000 (2011: $242,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not be affected in response to
the general increase/decrease in interest rates.
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(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
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(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the balance
sheet date. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of equity is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars (“USD”), Euros, Pounds Sterling,
Renminbi Yuan, Macau Patacas (“MOP”) and Japanese Yen.

As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) is pegged to the USD and
MOP is pegged to HKD, management does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HKD and MOP/HKD exchange
rates and considers the exposure to foreign currency risk in relation
to the USD and MOP to be low. However, management
acknowledges that it is exposed to fluctuations in the exchange
rate for other currencies and the Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of the
Group’s entities whose functional currency is HKD, in either HKD
or USD. Given this, management does not expect that there will
be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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AEH The Group
JEUHR R BB ISt Trage and other receivables
RERREFED  Cashand cash equivaents
JE AR R R 5 Trage and other payables
BELAZERR  Lontoassocateand

LHEE accrued inferest
Bl Net exposure arising from
HERAf recognised asses and
] labiiies
AR The Company

BB R A AR Trade and other receivables
RERHLEEY  Cashand cash equivdents
JE IR R AR FF 38 Trade and other payabes
REANZEER  Loantoassociteand

I3l accrued nterest

i+ Net exposure arising from
KERARK recogrised assets and
il lebiltes
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(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

U)

13375
16,613
o73)

33834

62,649

10518
(101)

33834

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposures are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

976 1 889
2486 437 15213
(13200 229 @
97%9) 4150 23,355
- 1363
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the balance sheet date had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rates
between the HKD and the USD, the HKD and MOP would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the USD or MOP against other currencies.

AEH
The Group
2012 2011
A % B8 B i A1) B {8
BE % A2 e % i A1 2
Lt/ Wim, i 4 wm,/
(F¥) (W 2) (FE) ()
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
% $000 % $'000
B 7T Euros 5 149 5 (407)
(5) (149) 5) 407
o g Pounds Sterling 5 (30) 5 (46)
(5) 30 5) 46
AR W Renminbi Yuan 5 9,562 5 (449)
(5) (9,562) 5) 449
H Japanese Yen 5 1,349 5 975
(5) (1,349) 5) 975)

bR A B E o A AR AR
5 A E R &S R DU B 2
fERFHE(MERBAR, %
PR MR EIT) 2 A
AF S5 R B AR kAR HE 25 2 B R
S 2 X

B 2 AT B R S R HE R
5 B O I A R AR 4 BT
Fp A M0 &5 5 H A 45 1 T B
R B 2 R TOH > A4 4R
DA JE M T SR T 2 e R
W AF B L 2 i L% B AT R K
G 23 BT A 45 i & s DL S 26 8
ZWB R A AL R
BT EAEZ EWM &
— AR IR R ] — S AT -

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet
date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date,
including inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.
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28 4wl B 4 B K A R fE i (8) 28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)
(e) MR 15 /& Bi (e) Equity price risk

KEBMAERZPEBEREE R L The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed
T A5 & BT 78 AE 2 P {5 ) JL e (2 equity investments classified as trading securities (see note 18).
) B R 18 0H) o

e AREE 2 b E YR U Certain of the Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
GG AR\ ([BsE ) B e Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
BAmMHEEEHFRES P EER Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily
18] 51 75 55 A1 B 48 B H A AT 26 A monitoring of the performance of individual securities compared
ZRBILEAEEBEE ST REE - to that of the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
BWEHEGTIREALE TR E R Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
Wil AT IS TAEZ e & - industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set by the

Group.
WZF—-ZF=ZA=1+—H: iz At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that changes in the relevant
HRBEmHEEGEETRENT) X stock market index (for listed investments) with all other variables
FO A A2 WOAE B R B A E R BRBL held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
38R (B AR BB ) 3, BRE T after tax (and retained profits) as follows:
7% 4L
The Group
2012 2011
BBk 3 B Bi 4%
e A B AR T A B AR B

A B BB WAz AR ER i F 2
ZEWURm, Wom, g Esm,/ wm,/
(W 4) (W A4) () (3 )

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit

(decrease) in after tax (decrease) in after tax

the relevant and the relevant and

risk retained risk retained

variable profits variable profits

% $°000 % $’000

Bt bz Stock market index
e i 4 ¥ - in respect of listed
investments:

5 A= F5 B Hang Seng Index 5 66 5 67

&) (66) (%) (67)
TR B Ay BT T R B R T HR B A The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the
CINEER oo N S W e | A ) Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
FE R R E R E A E AR assuming that the changes in the stock market index had occurred
7 I A8 JEL B Y 4 ml T T A at the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure
B Bl A% i A (B PR BF s R ot [ RF % those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Al IMERALEEIRARE 2 Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date. It is also
oy o AE E I AR B R A B A BH R T R assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments
W AT R, H— P H would change in accordance with the historical correlation with
il 538 Y A RS B o 300 M Y R B the relevant stock market index, and that all other variables remain
TR Z MR kAT o constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.
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28 Ak B B A B R A A (8)

H »AME

U

(i)

ARBEEARZ M TR

TR B IR A H B TECGE 5
WEEADSETIE /M T A - #
2 ST L A (/A W= R =
HEAREE ST RIREE -
#am TR 2o o fEE 2 WAR
BEZAAHEERNENSEE
B f A A% A BOPR o B
% 55 8 A S R

— AW EmE )
BTG MM TR
WEOCKHB) FEZL R
(LREEN

— BRI R ut
M TR 2 i fE SO
A A BOE
fi] $52 AR 4% W] IBL K T 35 MUHR
AT 2 A ST EE R 2 A
o fE(E

— =GRS AT
o] BB g A RCHR Y R R AR
AL g T S ROER A AT 2 A
(B 4l 5 & 2 & RE M

W R S
A=+—H> XEBREANTA
o S B IR 2 4 OB &
HFH LT EEERGRZE S &
#1,591,000 76 (= & — — 4
1,613,000 7¢) & 1,591,000 7C ( —
T — — 4 1 1,613,0007T) #% % 1
BEHABRZEHRBIN LA R
HEREME AR -

WRE F R F A
SH S B
STETERY EUE 31T
KR -

LS SUfE A DAAN AR 2 & B T
B e fEE

B/ B Ao 0 22 ) % B 2
LK T G B B R
R+ R 24 0 A - 9
%o H A G T B B RO B
Fo R E AR
S b F 2 0 4 K
Ty

28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(f) Fair values

U

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instruments categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data.

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the financial instruments of the
Group and the Company carried at fair value are trading
securities listed in Hong Kong amounting to $1,591,000
(2011: $1,613,000) and $1,591,000 (2011: 1,613,000),
respectively. These trading securities fall into Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy as described above.

During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, there
were no significant transfers between instruments in Level
1 and Level 3.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries and related companies
are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to measure its fair value.
Other financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2012
and 2011.
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28 Ak B A OB K A A fE A (m) 28

(8) &AM AE A it
™ SCHE A R LA R AR 18
30(@)HT#H B TR A REEZ
E 27k KR -

0 EH

N RBEELSE A 25 WE
FHE > A\ AN BRAL T 2 5y AR -

(i) BAESHE LR

B2 MBHR A REET)
S EROUMBAE AR5
WeHR 2 B (ol A A B E R
fiEE > W2 R T NE
Al R 7 i R HORBTE A R
P RV g RS
BAERA RGO T 87 Ah
w2 A A (B RT SE b Al
it A B ER -

29 7RI 29

(@) P_FE -4 =H=+—H R
] i B 2 A8 E A H R E A2
RAEHH &k A

Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(g) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions
used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments set out
in notes 18 and 30(a).

(i)  Trading securities

The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction of transaction
costs.

(i) Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm'’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.

Commitments

(a) At31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

7 4
The Group
2012 2011
LIE S H b LES At
Properties Others  Properties Others
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
— 4R Within 1 year 124,792 1,477 109,359 1,468
—HERMEIERN  After 1 year but within 5 years 79,465 1,572 103,917 3,007
204,257 3,049 213,276 4,475

(b) WZF-ZHFE=ZH=A—H - R
A i b Z RE M B H RN Z

(b) At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are payable

ALY X E AT - as follows:
AR A H
The Company
2012 2011
$°000 $'000
— N Within 1 year 5,256 4,896
—HEZEREN After 1 year but within 5 years 5,256 9,792
10,512 14,688
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7R ¥ (80

EHEAZMEMNERAZ L AT
EPNGIN-S U 9 N O A PRE

At AN AT R BR 2 W) 3 RS R A
A ER L E > BDAE A B A A BT R E 2
AMez b HHEMAYESABRAZ
12% £ 32% (&% — —4F 1 10% £ 31%) i
R EARBYRLEHEZ BT
AL T JER IS 2 SR & A K e TE
HE—BMP A -2 =4 HAHE
BRI B R A 8 T A R
AT EH R E e

PRz S5 ML AN > AR BUR S A A
BERAZY RN ERMZKAEN -
BUEHE RS AH -EZ=4 0H
A RERE AR AR 20 B R AT T BT A IR
AR AT R R E

B 2 1

(a) IR

W oE—TAHEZA=ZF—H AL
F) A B JE Ay F BE BOAS SR AT AE B 1) 4R
1T 1F | 4 £/ A 5180,455,000 G (= F
— — 4 1 179,080,000 7T ) * H A 2\ A
B 2 R AR o i JE E W 2
G K he MR 45 R g Rl HE I 56 39
SEH KR EMG ARG 2
SAREE RILZEERASSER
W B R R4 A B R -

REEEH EHG AR AL
W R AR A AL A AT RE MR R A -
REEEH RAF R ZER
EBEAERNEN A E A2
SRATIE B%7,398,0007C (& ——4F ¢
52,981,000 7¢) ©

g

B EFEENFE=ZHMHA > 6%k B
J& 2% A 4R A Ak B — A I A
W SE B 2 R RIS Z R RERE A A (T4
A A Z AR B A TR
WA b 2 T B 2K o R A B (A
JE Rr R A BN T 1) o BE R 2 AT R AR AT
RESHT 2 WO P A A e LR
7 S A R 1 S B AR PR A AR 2 DK
HEBORERIERAER B %
TNETHA—H - BHFESQGRE L
T bR B B R P T A A AL

(b)
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Commitments (continued)

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land held under operating
leases are described in note 12.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
included above are subject to contingent rent payments, which are
charged at amounts varying from 12% to 32% (2011: 10% to 31%) of
the monthly gross takings at the leased premises in excess of the base
rents as determined in the respective lease agreements. The above
disclosures in respect of operating lease commitments for properties
exclude contingent rent payments, which are not committed. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect of a number
of properties and office equipment held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Contingent liabilities

(a) Guarantees

At 31 March 2012, the Company has issued guarantees to banks
to secure banking facilities granted by banks to the subsidiaries
amounting to $80,455,000 (2011: $179,080,000). The guarantees
were issued by the Company at nil consideration. The transactions
were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure reliably
the fair value of these transactions in accordance with HKAS 39
had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the guarantees have
not been accounted for as financial liabilities and measured at fair
value.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it to
be probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
any of the guarantees issued. The maximum liability of the
Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantees issued
is the amount of banking facilities drawn down by the relevant
subsidiaries amounting to $7,398,000 (2011: $52,981,000).
(b) Litigations
On 4 March 2008, the Group’s subsidiary in France (“the French
Subsidiary”) early terminated the licensing contract (the “Licensing
Contract”) with a company incorporated in France, which was a
former licensee of the Group’s men'’s wear for Southern Europe
and North Africa (the “Former Licensee”), on the ground that the
Former Licensee breached the Licensing Contract on numerous
occasions. The early termination of the Licensing Contract was
first refused by the Tribunal of Commerce of Paris and then upheld
by the Supreme Court of Paris. On 1 October 2008, the Licensing
Contract was legally terminated by the judgment from the Court
of Appeal.
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30 2 AR A (8
(b) Z 1% (4)

5705 B B N AR AE B RE i 2 b
R P R P R R R A
AT AR R R TTHES A
% 15 1,404,000 K 7T (AH ¥ 14 14,531,000
W0 o B BE R AR B P 4R R W
FoBERALESTRESGHEED
M5 8 > 4 %6 492,773,000 ik 7T (FH & iR
28,701,000#5 JT) °

W oE-FFE A+ ZH B
B FE b R R B YRz s B M B A A
TR o ol ZE AR A IR SRR RE A AU
£ M| 5 18 492,600,000 K 7T (FH & R
26,910,000 % J0) K 1% 8 #0 B &% w1 4%
Bl 32 15,000 Bk JC (48 & 74 155,000 s
J6) o AR B RE R 2 R B
AN R RN - R i
15,000 ik J¢ (40 & 7% 155,000 % JC) »
8 8% & % 2,600,000 Bk 7C (41 # R
26,910,000 % i) M IF B & #47 > H
T L FRILBEAE R AR > T EHAT
FEBMEA AR -FE T
AT /\HE RS L FFe

K6 BELZ 5 W Y W 2 2 o ik A
B o s R R
Wi JBS > W) B JH R S W AL 0 AL
DRt > i b 2R A R R -
oS I e I o 3
A JEE A o

31 ERBBALES
W 16 A 4 05 30 2% L b Mo Ty B Bk 9E 2 58 5

K #i

oAb > 7 S ) B EEOK B BN L AT
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(a)

(b)
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30 Contingent liabilities (continued)

(b)

Litigations (continued)

The French Subsidiary then initiated a claim in the Tribunal of
Commerce of Paris against the Former Licensee in an amount of
EUR1,404,000 (equivalent to HK$14,531,000) for the breach of
the Licensing Contract by the Former Licensee. The Former
Licensee counterclaimed for losses arising from the termination
of the Licensing Contract for approximately EUR2,773,000
(equivalent to HK$28,701,000).

On 22 December 2010, the Tribunal of Commerce of Paris ruled
against the French Subsidiary and the French Subsidiary shall be
liable for approximately EUR2,600,000 (equivalent to
HK$26,910,000) as indemnities for the losses of gross margin
resulting from the termination of the Licensing Contract and
EUR15,000 (equivalent to HK$155,000) for the related design fee
incurred. According to the judgment from the Tribunal of
Commence of Paris, the design fee of EUR15,000 (equivalent to
HK$155,000) shall be settled immediately while the indemnity of
approximately EUR2,600,000 (equivalent to HK$26,910,000) is
not provisionally enforceable and settlement shall be pending the
judgment from the Court of Appeal. The French Subsidiary
appealed against the ruling on 28 December 2010.

Having considered the litigation with the French Subsidiary’s
various legal counsels, the Board of Directors believes that the
French Subsidiary is unlikely to be liable to the litigation.
Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in the financial
statements as at 31 March 2012 in respect of the above litigation.

31 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions.

(a)

(b)

Transactions with key management personnel

Al members of key management personnel are the directors of
the Company, and their remuneration is disclosed in note 7.

Transactions with and amounts paid to Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited, its subsidiaries and associated companies (“Yangtzekiang
Garment Group”) (certain directors of the Company are collectively
the controlling shareholders of both the Yangtzekiang Garment
Group and the Group):
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31 KB B A LR 5 (5 31 Material related party transactions (continued)
2012 2011
$°000 $°000
i A B 78 (PR GE) Purchases of garment products (note) 38,615 33,137
B A (B RE) Sales of garment products (note) 85 1,659
C A R HE i 70 4 (HE5E) Rental expense paid and payable on properties (note) 4,808 3,851
AT R e A4 52 % Management fees paid and payable 804 804
B foF B JE A5 oK T 3 % (i 5T ) Building management fees paid and payable (note) 300 288
iiESa0) Commission paid = 19
Bt E 0 # T AR A R VD A R A A Note: As certain directors and their associates are collectively the controlling
[ 2 PE R CGE R AL L ATELA) > R shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Yangtzekiang Garment Group
Ph B2 o WAL [ 2 5 ) © and the Group, the above transactions constitute connected transactions

for the Group under the Listing Rules.

(c) BB RN A ([ (¢) Transactions with HTGH and its subsidiaries (‘HTGH Group”) (a
o LB RS 2N m ([ V8 8 o i 4R [ ) i director of the Company and certain directors of certain
25 (KRN —ZEFRRANA subsidiaries of the Company are both directors and shareholders
W B 2N /) 2 45 T R R W A U R of HTGH. HTGH ceased to be the related party of the Group on
ez & H IR BB F 26 January 2012, see note 16(c)):

—CHE-AZ A ABEAER
9 Bl 1 77 - W SR RE 6 16(c) H)

2012 2011
$°000 $'000
LR & | DS Interest on loan granted 1,160 1,915
B A B M A IR 5 Service fee paid and payable 341 115
e A K A ¥ SEFH & Rental paid and payable on properties 427 794
e i K e Ui ) SE A & Rental received and receivable on properties = 578
d N _F—-"4E=ZA=+—HElW (d) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related companies as at 31
(FEAT) BR A 2 m] &5 8RR - March 2012:
2012 2011
$000 $'000
JRE AT R VT A 4R I k> R AR Amounts due to Yangtzekiang
Garment Group, net (4,238) (2,671)
JRE AT 5 o 42 i 4R 1 K Amount due to HTGH Group - (148)
JRRE WA 5 o 2 i 4 1 Loan and accrued interest due from
BB w AR HTGH Group - 33,834
BB S A BRAS AR D IS - R The outstanding balances with related companies are unsecured,
T e 4 0 RIBRE AE 2 5 iR B RE SR 17(a) interest-free and repayable on demand, except for the loan and
TH Jir B 2 2 M i VR I 4 AT K accrued interest due from HTGH Group, the repayment terms of
T B FI L 2 38 O B Ak which are disclosed in note 17(a).
32 & uk A B X 4w 32 Accounting judgements and estimates
B 5555 12(c) ~ 13~ 25 28 JH 4> Al 4 A4 A Notes 12(c), 13, 25 and 28 contain information about fair value of the
B & MY E - W IR assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
T BA s LB 2 N e A 2 AR sk K LR B properties, fair value of intangible assets, share options granted and
RZER - AGFEA B R 2 HAh financial instruments respectively. Other key sources of estimation
EHFMWT - uncertainty are as follows:
2011/12 % #
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32 & wh A B % 4% s (s

(a)

()

(c)

(d)
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32 Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered
“impaired” and an impairment loss may be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of trade receivables
is the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return of similar assets. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking account of
obsolescence and technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses, projections
of expected future saleability of goods and management
experience and judgement. Based on this review, a write down
of inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable value
decline below their carrying amounts of inventories. Due to
changes in customers’ preferences, actual saleability of goods
may be different from estimation and the income statement in
future accounting periods could be affected by differences in this
estimation.

Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the
Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses as at the year end based on management’s assessment
that it is probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimates, such differences willimpact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates are changed.
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Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(e) Valuation of investment properties

The fair value for the Group’s investment properties is calculated
by an independent firm of surveyors by either making reference
to the comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality, or
otherwise, by capitalising the current rent derived from the existing
tenancies with provision for any reversionary income potential.
The valuation model used by the property valuer makes use of
market inputs. Should changes be made to the market inputs,
the corresponding investment property valuations would change.

Restatement of comparatives

As a result of the adoption of amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes,
certain comparative figures have been adjusted to reflect the decrease
in accrual of deferred tax liabilities related to investment properties
carried at fair value. Further details of these changes in accounting
policies are disclosed in note 2.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 March 2012, the directors consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family Investment Corporation
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong.

Post balance sheet event

In addition to the post balance sheet event in respect of the sale of
investment properties and the proposed dividends as disclosed in
notes 12(e) and 27(b)(i) to the financial statements, respectively, other
post balance sheet event is disclosed as below:

Subsequent to the balance sheet date on 9 May 2012, the Group
entered into an agreement with a third party, Aquascutum Limited (“AQ
Ltd”) and the joint administrators appointed by AQ Ltd, to acquire the
clothing retail and concession business in the United Kingdom and
certain assets of AQ Ltd which mainly include all rights, title and interest
of Aquascutum brand (other than the rights already owned by the
Group covers the Asia operations) of AQ Ltd for a cash consideration
of £15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$188,171,000). The consideration
was satisfied by the Group’s internal resources.

The Group is in the process of assessing the financial impact of the
acquisition on the Group and it is not practical to disclose further details
in accordance with HKAS 10, Events after the Reporting Period.
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36 Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
AR P ] accounting periods
BH 36 0 390 A beginning on or after
(B MBHEANETYE - (20 T AW E ZE-—%EA—H0  Amendmentsto HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: 1 July 2011
— A E R Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets
(Bl EADFE1E (BITA) > (5 —ZH#tH—H  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of 1 July 2012
RENEW] - H b2 E i HHZ financial statements - Presentation of
275 items of other comprehensive income
(BB EADE09E (54 MBERE] ZF—=%—H—H  HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
(Bl ERD SE12%5 [ A L4 ZE—ZH—A—H  HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other 1 January 2013
T 2 19 % 75 ) entities
(BB EADEYE (AL EEFE] —F—=%—H—H  HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
(B & s A 27 98 > [ 7 B “EF-ZHF——H HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
##l2011)
(B & aHE D 1958 (B3 4&) “F-=F—H—H  Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
[k T 7 7|
(BB g RHEAD ST (BT A) > (2 ZE-ZH—A—H  Amendmentsto HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: 1 January 2013
TRI-#/&ERE A 1§25 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
(BFiEaFHENDER2 (BT A) (24 ZE-WAE-T—H  Amendmentsto HKAS 32, Financial instruments: 1 January 2014
TR EH-2HEEREHARKL Presentation - Offsetting financial assets and
1L 5 financial liabiliies
(BB DSOS (24 LA ZE-RF R HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

AR I Sl 5% 55 05 TR UCRE 1T I8 1H]
P 2 R RER I BRSNS U RS
32%1**T“1‘$%@IZ”“%%%&EN‘%%
DUME R B W REE R K
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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Principal Subsidiaries
W —F—-Z4F=H =1 — H At31 March 2012

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class

of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

o A B A 2 R
SR oo R Percentage of ownership interest
JR O e B8 4 0 BRBA KEMZ AR i W B
Place of WE AR RS B BARA
incorporation/ Particulars of issued Group’s Held Held
TR establishment and paid up/  effective by the bya HEEH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
SRR R i HK$1,000,000 100 100 - MERMBERTE
Michel René Limited Hong Kong Garment wholesaling and retailing
JEREE (P B A A ) i HK$2,000,000 100 100 - B
Guy Laroche (China) Limited Hong Kong Garment wholesaling
RALIAEA B2 ] ik HK$2 100 100 - REBRREMAHEREE
YGM Marketing Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and garment
wholesaling and retailing
YGM Fashion Limited &b HK$2 100 100 - MR
Hong Kong Garment wholesaling
e A R i HK$500,000 100 100 - DENBERRREHER
Bentwood Limited Hong Kong Property leasing management and
investment holding
YGM i 40 (R AIRA R | MOP100,000 100 100 - BKREE
YGM Marketing (Macau) Limited Macau Garment retailing
RILTG A RA A ik HK$200 100 100 - B
YGM Clothing Limited Hong Kong Garment wholesaling
YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited 8 1€ 4t & Us$2 100 100 - BRERE
British Virgin Islands Garment manufacturing
RILAMR s A RA T4 PEARLME HK$25,900,000 100 - 100 MUK
YGM Clothing (Dongguan) The PRC Garment manufacturing
Limited ###
JEM T8 7 U185 A WA A et o 38 LRGN RMB500,000 100 - 100 MAHEREE
Guangzhou Yangtzekiang Trading ~ The PRC Garment wholesaling and retailing
Company Limited ##/###
P AL S R Al GNPl US$1,000,000 100 - 100 MAHERETE
YGM Trading Company Limited ### The PRC Garment wholesaling and retailing
(R HEARAA M PEARLANR US$1,000,000 100 - 100 MARMERTE
YGM Marketing (Shanghai) The PRC Garment wholesaling and retailing
Company Limited ###
A A P I R ik HK$2 100 - 100 4k 6
Aquascutum International Limited ~ Hong Kong Trademark promotion
Aguascutum International 0 £1 100 - 100 BEA Bl 66 1 A
Licensing Limited United Kingdom Trademark ownership and licensing
YGM Mart Limited i HKS2 100 100 - BCEBRREEA R R
Hong Kong Investment holding, trademark
ownership and licensing
Michel René Enterprises Limited %5 /8 Ji& 4 7 & US$50,000 68 68 - RAMBLETE
British Virgin Islands™* Garment wholesaling and retailing
Luk Hop Garments Limited # i HK$200 100 100 - WERE
Hong Kong * HK$1,000 100 100 - Property investment
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Principal Subsidiaries

BT E— T4 = H =+ — H At 31 March 2012

i 47 B 2 72
o1 ) B CEL R Percentage of ownership interest
JR 3 e B8 BRBA AREHZ  hART i B
Place of AR AYER RS il AARE
incorporation/ Particulars of issued Group’s Held Held
TR establishment and paid up/ effective by the bya HEEH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
Squash International Limited # Fi HK$2 100 100 - WERE
Hong Kong Property investment
Aramis International Limited # ik HK$20 100 100 - WERE
Hong Kong * HK$100,000 100 100 - Property investment
SO A R A # ik HK$6,500,000 91 91 - WERE
Far East Gate Limited # Hong Kong Property investment
BREARLA 4 i HK$6,000 80 80 - BENE
Parahood Limited # Hong Kong Property investment
Trothy Company Limited # & HK$10,000 100 100 - WERE
Hong Kong Property investment
YGM Printing Inc. # by il Us$ 100 100 - REER
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
BBE2RBHMAT 4 ik HK$2 100 100 - BREER
Hong Kong Security Hong Kong Investment holding
Systems Limited #
BT 2R A RA A # ik HK$10,000 100 - 100 FDR B 7 3E 2% 1 BN
Hong Kong Security Hong Kong Provision of security printing and
Printing Limited # general business forms printing
Société Guy Laroche # i EUR1,239,000 100 - 100 A AT A G 9 B R At 3
France Trademark ownership and licensing,
and garment wholesaling
YGM Studio Limited ik HK$21,060,000 100 - 100 HEEK
Hong Kong * HK$46,800,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
YGM Consortium Limited ik HK$2 100 100 - BEER
Hong Kong Investment holding
GL Europa SA. # KA EUR62,000 100 - 100 HEHRK
Belgium Investment holding

T B AT A 1y 0 B M 2 A - (HLRLTR A T BR S
T 5% e A3 5% HE R S A7 ©
B A SRR SRR -
All the issued share capital represents ordinary shares or registered capital except where noted by:
Represent 5% non-voting deferred shares.
Represent non-voting preference shares.

BB 5 R B ¥ 482 1 Michel René Enterprises Limited ©
In addition, *** represents Michel René Enterprises Limited which operates in Taiwan.

# $6 300 Ik o S R A S T A Y ] e % S AR I o S S T A A B A v B 3 R O A AR AR B AR S A AL A B
454 M%) 6.39% % 8.59% ©

# HEAAMEGEL M2 HEMATL b -

#iE RSN A P R G AL A T S R 2 e

# Companies not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover constituting
approximately 6.39% and 8.59% of the related consolidated totals respectively.

##  The English translation of the Company name is for reference only. The official name of the Company is in Chinese.

### These are wholly-owned investment enterprises registered in the PRC.
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